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Honorable President and Members of the Board of Education
Lakewood Township Public Schools

200 Ramsey Ave.

Lakewood, New Jersey 08701

Dear Members of the Board of Education:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Lakewood School District ("District") for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data
and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management
of the Lakewood Township Board of Education ("Board"). To the best of our knowledge and belief, the
data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to
present fairly the financial position and results of operation of the various funds of the District. All
disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities
have been included. ‘

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections: Introductory, Financial,
Statistical and Single Audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's
organizational chart, a roster of principal officials and a list of consultants and advisors. The financial
section includes the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and other
supplementary information, as well as the auditor's report thereon. The statistical section includes
selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis. The District
is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of
1984, as amended in 1996, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (“OMB?”) Circular A-133, Audits
of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and the State Treasury OMB Circular Letter
04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid Payments.
Information related to this single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control structure and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations, are included in the
single audit section of this report.

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES

The Lakewood School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
GASB as established by NCGA Statement No. 3. All funds of the District are included in this report.
The Lakewood School District and all its schools constitute the District's reporting entity.

200 RAMSEY AVENUE, LAKEWOOD, NJ 08701-2895 e (732) 364-2400 ® FAX (732) 905-3687
BUSINESS OFFICE FAX (732) 364-2954 @ HUMAN RESOURCES FAX (732) 905-0009
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The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels PK through 12,
These include regular and vocational, as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The
District completed the 2012-2013 fiscal year with an enrollment of 5,166 students,

The following details the changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last several years:

Average Dailv Enrollment

Fiscal Year Student Enrollment Percent Change
2012/13 5,166 (3.65%)
2011712 5,362 (1.36%)
2010/11 5,436 6.62%
2009/10 5,076 (4.19%)
2008/09 5,298 .94%
2007/08 5,249 (1.20%)
2006/07 5,313 2.06%
2005/06 5,206 6.20%
2004/05 4,902 {7.89%)
2003704 5,322 A2%
2002/03 5,300 (3.46%)
2001/02 5,490 (3.89%)
2000/01 5,712 0.97%
1999/00 5,657 1.67%
1998/99 5,546 2.52%
1997/98 5,427 0.17%
1996/97 5,418 (1.08%)
1995/96 5,477 (1.73%)
2, FECONOMIC CONDITION AND QUTLOOK

Lakewood Township is located in Central New Jersey, just 15 miles west of some of New Jersey’s most
beautiful beaches and about a 1-1/2 hour drive from New York, Philadelphia, Trenton and Atlantic City.
Its population of about 93,000 represents peoples of all ethnic and national origins and socio-economic
levels. Industrial development in the Township has been centered around two large industrial parks. One
is located around a municipality-owned airport in the southeast section of the Township, and the second
has the advantage of railroad access in the southwest portion of the Township. Lakewood, among the
area communities is the only one with an Urban Enterprise Zone. Lakewood is home to Paul Kimball
Medical Center which has 350 licensed beds, 310 physicians on staff and more than 1,800 employees.
Post-secondary education is served by Georgian Court University, a four-year college for women, and
Beth Medrash Govoha, a rabbinical college. The Township of Lakewood provides for a variety of
municipal services including the operation of a municipal building and complex, library and excellent
recreation facilities through a system of township-owned parks and playgrounds. Development and
expansion is expected to continue which suggests that Lakewood will continue to prosper and grow.

The Lakewood School District has a Superintendent of Schools who is the Chief Administrative Officer.
The Business Administrator oversees the Board’s business functions and reports through the
Superintendent to the Board.

The Lakewood School District encompasses one Kindergarten school, and three 1-5 elementary schools,
a Middle School (grades 6-8), a High School and a pre-schoo! campus, serving a student population of
approximately 5,700, Lakewood High School is known for the harmonious way the various segments of
its population work together, as well as its fine academic programs.
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High School students may elect to participate in College Prep, Vocational, or Tech Prep Education
programs, JROTC, or attend the ACE Academy. More than 65% of our graduates attend colleges or other
institutions of higher learning. Our 2011 graduates were accepted to such prestigious colleges and
universities as Central Connecticut State, Concordia College, Gannon University, Georgian Court
University, Johnson C. Smith University, NC, Johnson and Wales University, Kean University,
Montclair, NJIT, NYIT, Neumann University, Nova Southeastern University, Richard Stockton College,
Seton Hall, South Plains College, TCNJ, University of the Sciences and Virginia State among others,

Academic Programs

A broad range of academic programs from Advance Placement and Honors to basic skills are designed to
meet the diverse needs of students in the Lakewood schools. Basic skills in reading, writing,
mathematics and science are stressed at the elementary level, with continuing emphasis throughout all
prades. Art and music classes, physical education, computer and library skills are part of every student’s
schedule at the elementary level. Chorus, band and orchestra (including free lessons) are offered starting
at Grade 5 as part of the curriculum,

To provide students with assistance and opportunities for success, the Lakewood School District has
many services, such as district-wide guidance and career services, bilingual education, a special

education program and a sports program.

Academically Gifted Program

The Academically Gifted Program consists of two self-contained classes housed at Clifton Avenue Grade
School. One class combines third and fourth-grade students, and the other combines students in Grades 5
and 6. Criteria for selection include achievement tests, an ability test and teacher recommendation.
“Curriculum compacting” is employed to speed the learning process, thus allowing for a greater focus on
creativity, independent thinking, decision-making and inquiry. Students in Kindergarten through Grade 2
who are identified as academicaily-gifted receive enrichment from their classroom teacher.

Honors Courses

Advanced Placement and Honors-level courses are available at the High School in English, Social
Studies, Science, Math, Foreign Languages (including Classic Latin) and Drawing. Finite and Discrete
Mathematics and Russian are offered via interactive satellite TV.

Sports Program

Students from Elementary through High School have an opportunity to participate in sports. On the
Elementary [evel, students participate in intra-mural sports. This year, 21 teams will represent Lakewood
High School in varsity sports competitions, and 8 teams will compete on the Middle School level. We
are proud that more than 800 male and female student athletes from both the High Scheol and Middle
School participated in these programs last year.
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Tech Prep

The foundation of Tech Prep is applied academics, a combination of academics and hands-on learning.
High School students enrolled in Tech Prep follow a career pathway that continues at Ocean County
College, with a four-year college option. Some pathways currently available include Accounting,
Communications, Communications Media, Environmental Emphasis, Office Systems, Matketing/Public
Relations and Telecommunications, among others.

Preschool Program

Research has shown that it is important to focus on the education of our children as early as possible. As
a result, the Lakewood School District has instituted a Full-day Lakewood Pre-School Program for three
and four-year old students, who are randomly selected.

Children must be three years old by December 31* to enroll in the Program. A teacher and aide are
assigned to every fifteen children for instruction each day. Students learn various skills, like
understanding a calendar and paying attention to details. They also are prepared for the language, reading
and math lessons they will have in future grades. Bus transportation is provided for all students.

All-Dav Kindergarten

As of July, 2001, the District offered all-day Kindergarten classes in every school.

Family Life Education

Parents may have their child(ren) excused from any part of instruction in Family Life Education which is
in conflict with his or her conscience or sincerely-held moral or religious beliefs.

Guidance Services

Guidance services are available to students at all levels. Periodically, guidance counselors meet with
students to offer social, emotional and academic support.

At the Elementary level, counselors organize group discussions on common problems, such as making
friends and dealing with emotions. Counselors also serve to strengthen communications between parents
and teachers and are always available to discuss problems students may be having at home. Counselors
are able to direct students and parents to readily-available support services in the community.

At the Middle and High Schools, counselors work closely with parents and students to plan course
selections which would best meet their academic and career goals.

Extensive help is available through the High School Guidance Office for colleges and/or vocational
planning. The LHS Career Center contains a wealth of information about jobs and careers both in
written form and on computer databases. Special evening workshops are held to inform parents and
students about college preparation and procedures for obtaining financial aid.

When appropriate, counselors can arrange for individual tutoring services or home tutoring in cases of
extended illness. Students and parents are encouraged to contact their guidance counselors at any time.
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Yocational Education

The Ocean County Vocational-Technical School System offers programs that are designed to prepare
students for entrance into a career filed upon graduation. High School students who wish to choose a
vocational career path may sign up in the LHS Career Center.

Career Services

In accordance with the New Jersey School-to-Career Initiative, the Lakewood School District offers a
comprehensive career development program in addition to school and work-based learning services.
Students in Grades 9-12 develop individual portfolios of work, education, and career-related experiences
to guide them in selecting the career and post-secondary education that best suits their interests and
abilities.

Testing and Assessment

In 1875, the State constitution guaranteed that students in New Jersey would receive an education in free
public schools. Since that time, much of education law has centered on providing that education for all
students and paying for it. Content standards in many disciplines were recently designed to determine
what students throughout New Jersey should know and be able to do as part of that education.

These standards have now become State law and are directly tied to State funding and to State testing.
The assessments of what children have mastered are not just paper and pencil tests. These tests include
thinking and performing (hands-on). Some time in the future, the standards will probably be the hasis of
graduation requirements as defined by the State.

Administrators and teachers in the Lakewood School District have been changing and modifying
curricula to incorporate core curricutum content standards. The seven academic areas are the Visual and
Performing Arts, Comprehensive Health and Physical Education, Language Arts/Literacy, Mathematics,
Science, Social Studies and World Languages.

In addition, there are five standards that are associated with carcer education and apply to all areas of
instruction: 1) All students will develop career-planning workplace readiness skills; 2) All students will
use technology information, and other tools; 3) All students will use critical-thinking, decision-making,
and problem-solving skills; 4) All students will demonstrate self~management skills; 5) All students will
apply safety principles.

An Elementary Test at various grade levels (3, 4, 5, & 6) is now required in Language ArtsfLiteracy
(Reading, Writing, Speaking), Mathematics and Science. Each year, an additional assessment of the
standards will be required.

State testing reflects the Core Curriculum Content Standards in the eleventh grade HSPA {High School
Proficiency Assessment) and the eighth grade GEPA {Grade Eight Proficiency Assessment) formerly
called the EWT (Early Warning Test).

Basic Skills

Students in grades K-12 who need assistance in achieving proficiency in mathematics, reading or
fanguage arts receive special help through remedial programs.



Bilingual/ESL Program

The Bilingual Education Act ensures that students of Limited English Proficiency (“LEP”) are provided
with instructions which will allow them to continue to develop academic skills while acquiring English
language skills.

An English Language Proficiency Test is administered to students before entering the program to
determine whether they need the Bilingual/ESL Program.

The Bilingual Program in the Lakewood School District is a full-time program of instruction in all
subjects (which a student is required to receive) given in the native language of the student and/or in
English. All students in the Bilingual Program also receive daily English as a Second Language (“ESL”)
instruction in order to develop and improve their communication skills, such as aural comprehension,
speaking, reading, and writing skills in English. Students leave the Bilingual Program based on English
Language Proficiency Test results, standardized test results in English, reading and teachers’
recommendations.

Pupil Personnel Services (“PPS”)

The Department of Pupil Personnel Services provides specialized programs for handicapped and non-
handicapped students. Occupational therapy, physical therapy, speech therapy and nursing services are
furnished to students, as appropriate. In addition, an outstanding adaptive physical education program is
available for students with identified needs. Social Service intervention is provided for non-handicapped
students.

Special education programs follow a New Jersey State Department of Education Three Year Plan of
service and are guided by State and Federal code. All professionals serving handicapped students are
appropriately certified by the State of New Jersey. Annually, the New Jersey State Department of
Education provides a program review of Special Education services, certifying appropriate compliance
while approving programs that have been introduced.

Special Education Services

The Lakewood Schoo! District employs medical specialists, psychologists, learning consultants and
social workers as Child Study Team members, Thus, a full continuum of services along with innovative
programs and techniques are provided, allowing for each student to participate in the least restrictive
environment to the maximum extent possible.

Direct classroom service is provided by teachers of the handicapped, adaptive physical education
instructors, occupational therapists, speech therapists and physical therapists. Many students receiving
special education assistance remain in the classroom and are provided with supplemental aids and
services. Handicapped students who have remained within the standard educational program have
demonstrated extensive educational improvement.

Many programs have been developed for students experiencing significant educational handicaps.
Programs that serve the significantly educationally-handicapped alleviate the need for out-of-district

placement focations, which require extensive travel time.

Health Services

Students in the Lakewood Public Schools are served by school physicians and full-time, fully-certified
school nurses. The School Nurse is a member of the professional staff who carries out health services in
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accordance with the regulations of the State of New Jersey and the Board of Education. The School
Nurse provides health screenings, monitors immunization requirements and completes health records.

Preschool Program Enrollment

The Lakewood School District provides preschool programming for handicapped students between the
ages of 3 and 5 who are identified as having handicaps in one or more of the following areas: motor,
communication-language, cognitive, physical, social-emotional and medical. Evaluation to determine
eligibility for the program may begin 90 days prior to the child’s third birthday. Child Study Team
assessment and recommendation are required for enroliment. An Individual Education Plan (“IEP”)
outlining services to be provided based on the child’s individual needs is written for each child entering
the preschool program.

Home Instruction

When a pupil is unable to attend school for an extended time, as documented by the attending physician
or Child Study Team, he/she may receive Home Instruction.

Senior Citizen Volunteer Program

Since 1991, many senior citizens have been faithfully reporting to the public schools to assist teachers
and work with children, either individually or in small groups, from Kindergarten through 5th Grade,
including Special Education and the Library/Media Center. Senior Citizen Volunteers, under the
direction of a classroom teacher, may focus on readiness skills, reading, mathematics, writing or a host of
other educational needs that children have.

Grants Management

Competitive and non-competitive grants are funds that are awarded for specific educational purposes.
Grant money, which can come from the Federal government, the State of New Jersey, or even private
foundations, provide the funds for programs, equipment, training or services that benefit our children and
teachers without adding additional costs to the school budget.

Even though applying for grants takes hours and hours of work filling out detailed application forms,
creating a working budget and justifying needs, the Lakewood administration and staff aggressively
sought and received more than one million dollars for such competitive grants as Even Start Family
Literacy Program; Family and Childhood Earfy Education Services and School-to-Careers Opportunities
Initiatives.

The Lakewood School District is committed to seeking funding, but grants alone are not sufficient to
give our children the education they need. Helping our children become successful, productive citizens

takes a strong commitment from everyone in our community.

School Based Program

Lakewood Middle and High School students, ages 13-19, including their families, graduates and those
who have dropped out of school, can take advantage of the School Based Youth Services Program. The
School Based Program, a collaboration among Preferred Children’s Services, the Lakewooed School
District, and the New Jersey Department of Human Services, was implemented in 1988 to provide “one-
stop shopping” for students and their families in the areas of counseling, health, recreation, and
empioyment.

vii




Students who are referred by community agencies, family members and self, or Lakewood School
administrators and faculty, receive such services as individual, parent-child, family and group therapy;
monitoring of high risk students; home visits; pregnancy testing options and family planning counseling;
self-estcem workshops; life skills; peer pressure management; overnight camping and job/college
readiness, etc.

3. MAJOREDUCATIONAL INITIATIVES

Our staff is aggressively working to help students raise their scores on standardized tests. The Library at
the High School is open three (3) days a week until 5:00 p.m. for student use. Students are also receiving
extra help through remedial instruction. At the Middle School, a Homework Club, is being held three (3)
days per week staffed by different area teachers to assist students in the various disciplines.

During the summer of 2009 a Bridge Program was instituted at the Middle School to assist eighth graders
in their transition to High School. A Summer Scholars Program was operated at the High School funded
in part with federal and state grants.

The High School began a transition to an Academy based structure beginning with the entering ninth
grade class during the 2009-10 school year. The program is based on the successful High Schools That
Work program utilized in many urban school districts throughout the United States and New Jersey.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principals generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The
internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these
objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should
not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates
and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable iaws and regulations
related to those programs. This internal control structure is aiso subject to periodic evaluation by the
District management. As part of the District’s singie audit described earlier, tests are made to determine
the adeguacy of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial
assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and
regulations.

A detailed Manual of Standard Operating Procedures and Internal Controls was developed during the
2008-09 schoo! year and updated as needed during the 2009-2010 and 2010-2011 school years in
accordance with the requirements of the School Accountability Act and distributed to all administrators
throughout the district, It is scheduled for another review and update in the 2013-2014 school year.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of
these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue
fund, and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital improvements
accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is
reflected in the financial section.
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The 2013-14 budget was prepared, utilizing the Budget Projection capabilities of the district’s accounting
system (Systems 3000). Use of this system reduced the amount of time needed by administrators to
prepare their budget and enabled the business office to efficiently review budget submissions and make
changes in accordance with district priorities and goals,

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item
basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as re-appropriations of fund
balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be re-appropriated in the subsequent school year are
reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2013,

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS

The District’s accounting records reflect accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting
system of the District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in “Notes to the
Financial Statements,” Note 1,

7. CASH MANAGEMENT

The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as detailed in “Notes to the
Financial Statements,” Note 2. The District has adopted a cash management plan, which requires it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act (“GUDPA”). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units
from loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires
governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the
funds are secured in accordance with the Act.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited to general liability, automobile
liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents, and fidelity
bonds.

9. MAJOR FINANCIAL INITIATIVES AND ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The continued implementation of a detailed system of internal controls, supplemented with the Manual of
Standard Operating Procedures enabled the district to increase its” score from 51 to 90 points on the
Financial Management section of the state monitoring guidelines (NJQSAC), resulting in passing that
section.

Even with a monthly review of revenues and expenditures, combined with preparation of projection
reports for revenues, payroll and health benefits, the district was unable to accurately forecast year-end
surplus. The amount of surplus that was utilized as Budgeted Fund Balance for the 2012-2013 school
year was not in the plan, The district had a zero increase in the property tax levy for 2012-2013. This
resulted in a shortfall at the end of the year.

These initiatives resulted in the district ending the school year with an Unreserved General Fund Balance
in excess of $1 million, whereas at June 30, 2007 the district ended the year with a deficit of §1.1 million,
at June 30, 2008 a surplus of only $277,000 and at June 30, 2009 a surplus of $1.2 million. These
initiatives have enabled the district to move forward fiscally and have placed the district on a stable
financial base as required by state code and regulations.
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10. OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit — New Jersey State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accountants. The accounting firm of Lerch, Vinci & Higgins, LLP was selected by the Board. In addition
to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the
requirements of the OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organization, and State of New Jersey Circular 04-04-OMB, Single Audit Policy for Requirements of
Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. The Auditor’s report on the basic financial statements and
combining and individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report.
The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this
report.

11. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Lakewood Township Board of
Education for their unwavering support in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of
the District and to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this
report could not have been accomplished without the efficient, effective and dedicated services of our
financial and business office staff.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Lakewood Board of Education

Lakewood, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lakewood Board of Education as of and for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of Education’s
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

17-17 ROUTE 208 ® FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410 ® TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100 ® FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Lakewood Board of Education as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our andit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Lakewood Board of Education’s basic financial statements, The introductory section, combining fund financial
statements, financial schedules, statistical section, schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by U.S. Office
of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations
and schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required by New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants. State Grants and State Aid, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Lakewood Board of Education,

The combining fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures of
state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining fund financial
statements, schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section, financial schedules and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.




Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 5, 2013 on our
consideration of the Lakewood Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose
of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Lakewood Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance

Zé‘e:,g,, Jy Lttt / /\) /ﬁ

ERCH VINCI & HIGGINGLLP
Certlﬁed Publlc Accountants

Public Schogl Accountant
PSA Numblr CS00756

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
December 5, 2013
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

This section of Lakewood Board of Education’s (“Board” or “District”) comprehensive annual financial report presents
our discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2013,
Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District’s financial statements,
which immediately follows this section.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information specified in
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 — Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments issued in June 1999. Certain comparative
information between the current year (2012-2013) and the prior year (2011-2012) is required to be presented in the
MD&A.

Financial Highlights

Key financial highlights for the 2012-2013 fiscal year are as follows:

e The assets of the Lakewood Board of Education exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close
of the fiscal year by $5,704,317 (net position).

¢  Net position decreased $4,711,960 which represents a decrease of 45 percent from 2012.

e  Overall general revenues of $87,461,279 accounted for 37 percent of all revenues and overall program revenues of
$65,851,294 accounted for 43 percent of total revenues of $153,312,573.

s  The School District had $158,024,533 in overall expenses of which $65,851,294 were offset by program specific
charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues of $87,461,279 helped offset these expenses.

o  The School District had $154,774,041 in expenses for governmental activities; only $61,892,018 of these expenses
were offset by program specific charges, grants or contributions. General revenues (predominantly property taxes) of
$88,659,095 were adequate to provide for these programs.

o At June 30, 2013, the District’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $754,125, a decrease of
$93,814 when compared to the previous year ending fund balance of $847,939 at June 30, 2012.

¢ The General Fund unassigned fund deficit at June 30, 2013 was $4,165,721, a decrease of $1,076,428 when compared
with the ending fund deficit of $3,089,293 at June 30, 2012,

¢ The General Fund unassigned budgetary fund balance at June 30, 2013 was $1,142,896, which represents a decrease
of $1,687,627 when compared to the ending unassigned budgetary fund balance of $2,830,523 at June 30, 2012.




LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial section of the comprehensive annual financial report consists of four parts — independent auditor’s report,
required supplementary information which includes the management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic

financial statements, and supplemental information. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that
present different views of the District:

= The first two statements are district-wide financial statements that provide both short-term and long-term information
about the District’s overall financial status.

* The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the District, reporting the
District’s operations in more detail than the district-wide statements.

- The governmental funds statements tell how basic services such as regular and special education were financed in
the short term as well as what remains for future spending,

- Proprietary funds statements offer short — and long-term financial information about the activities the district
operates like businesses.

- Fiduciary funds statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the District acts solely
as a trustee or agent for the benefit of others to whom the resources belong.

Organization of Lakewood Board of Education’s
Annual Financial Report

o M h . .
3 ar.zagem.e nis Basic Required
Discussion . .
and Financial Supplementary |
) Statements Information |
Analysis

. Notes
District-Wide B Fund
) . . , fo the
Financial = = Financial , .
RS IUR Financial
Statements L Statements
ey Statements

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the statements and provide more
detailed data. The above chart shows how the various parts of this annual report are arranged and related to one another.

'The following exhibit summarizes the major features of the District’s financial statements, including the portion of the
District’s activities they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of
management’s discussion and analysis highlights the structure and contents of each of the statements.
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Major Features of the District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

District-wide

Fund Financial Statements

Statements Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds Fiduciary Funds
Scope Entire district {except The activities of the Activities the district Instances in which the
fiduciary funds) district that are not operates similar to district administers
proprietary or private businesses: resources on behalf of
fiduciary, such as Food Service Fund. someone elge, such as

Instruction, special
education and
building
maintenance.

scholarships and student
activity funds.

Required financial
statements

Statement of net position
Statement of activities

Balance sheet,
Statement of
revenues
expenditures and
changes in fund

Statement of net Statements of Fiduciary
position, net position,
Statement of revenue, Statement of changes in

expenses and changes fiduciary net position
in fund net position

balances Statement of cash flows
Accounting Basis | Accrual accounting and Modified accrual Accrual accounting and | Accrual accounting and
and measurement | economic resources focus accounting and economic resources €CoNomic resources
focus current financial focus focus
focus
Type of All assets and liabilities Generally assets All assets and All assets an liabilities,
asset/liability both financial and capital, expected to be used liabilities, both both short-term and
information short-term and long-term up and liabilities that | financial and capital, long-term; funds do not
come due during the | and short-term and currently contain capital
year or soon there long-term assets, although they
after; no capital assets can
or long-term
liabilities included
Type of All revenues and expenses Revenues for which All revenues and Alj additions and
inflow/out flow during year, regardless of cash is received expenses during the dedications during the
information when cash is received or during or soon after year, regardless of year, regardless of when
paid the end of the year; when cash is received cash is received or paid.
expenditures when or paid.

goods or services
have been received
and the related
liability is due and
payable

District-Wide Statements

The district-wide statements report information about the District as a whole using accounting methods similar to those
used by private-sector companies. The statements of net position includes all of the District’s assets and liabilities. All of
the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is

received or paid.

The two district-wide statements report the District’s net position and how they have changed. Net position — the
difference between the District’s assets and liabilities/deferred inflows of resources — is one way to measure the District’s

financial health or position.




LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
District-Wide Statements (Continued)

Over time, increases or decreases in the District’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial position is
improving or deteriorating, respectively.

To assess the overall health of the District you need to consider additional non-financial factors such as changes in the
amount of State funding and the condition of school buildings and other facilities.

In the district-wide financial statements the District’s activities are presented in two categories:

Governmental Activities — Most of the District’s basic services are included here, such as regular and special
education, transportation, administration and operations and maintenance of plant. State and federal aid and
property taxes finance most of these activities.

Business-Type Activities — The District charges fees to customers to help it cover the costs of certain services it
provides. The District’s food service and community service funds are included here. The community service
program was discontinued at the conclusion of the 2011-2012 school year.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s funds — focusing on its most
significant or “major” funds — not the District as a whole, Funds are accounting devices the District uses to keep track of
specific sources of funding and spending on particular programs. The District considers the general fund, special revenue
fund and debt service funds to be major funds.

e Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

» The district uses other funds established in accordance with the State of New Jersey Uniform Minimum Chart of
Accounts, to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is properly using certain
revenues (e.g., federal funds).

The District has three kinds of funds:

Governmental funds — Most of the District’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which generally
focus on (1) how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the
balances left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide
a detailed short-term view that helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be
spent in the near future to finance the District’s programs. Because this information does not encompass the
additional long-term focus of the district-wide statements, we provide additional information at the bottom of the
governmental funds statements that explains the relationship (or differences) between them.

Proprietary funds — Services for which the District charges a fee are generally reported in proprietary funds. The
activities of the District’s food service program are accounted for as enterprise funds. Proprietary funds are
reported in the same way as in the district-wide statements,

Fiduciary funds — The District is the trustee, or fiduciary, for assets that belong to others, such as the Scholarship
fund. The District is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended
purposes and by those to whom the assets belong, All of the District’s fiduciary activities are reported in a separate
statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position. We exclude these activities
from the district-wide financial statements because the District cannot use these assets to finance its operations,
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Notes to the basic financial statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-
wide and fund financial statements, The notes to the basic financial statements can be found following the basic financial
statements.
Other Information
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the District’s budget process. The District adopts an annual expenditure budget
for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the
general and special revenue funds as required supplementary information. The required supplementary information can
be found following the notes to the basic financial statements.
Combining statements and schedules are presented immediately following the major budgetary comparisons.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT

The district’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of activities, the
acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets.

Net position. The District’s combined net position for governmental activities and business-type activities were
$5,704,317 on June 30, 2013 and $10,416,277, on June 30, 2012.

Net Position
as of June 30, 2013 and 2012

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 20572964 $§ 10,441,142 § 1,224303 § 1,704,566 5§ 30,797,267 $ 12,145,708
Capital Assets 15,035,372 12,974,252 397,052 427,816 15,432,424 13,402,068

Total Assets 44,608,336 23,415,394 1,621,355 2,132,382 46,229,691 25,547,776
Liabilities
Long-Term Liabilities 11,538,760 5,343,736 11,538,760 5,343,736
Other Liabilities 28,837,589 9,616,743 145,218 168,724 28,982,807 9,785,467

Total Liabilities 40,376,349 14,960,479 145,218 168,724 40,521,567 15,129,203
Deferred Intflows of Resources - - 3,807 2,296 3,807 -

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

of Resources 40,376,349 14,960,479 149,025 171,020 40,525,374 15,129,203

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 12,022,392 12,110,203 397,052 427,816 12,419,444 12,538,021
Restricted 4,123,316 43 4,123,316 43
Unrestricted {11,913, 721) (3,655,333) 1,075,278 1,533,546 (10,838,443) (2,121,787)

Total Net Position 3 4,231,987 § 8,454915 $ 1472330 § 1,961,362 § 5,704,317 § 10,416,277




LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT (Continued)

By far the largest portion of the District’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land and
improvements, buildings and improvements, vehicles, furniture and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire
those assets that are still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to its students;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending, Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other
sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The following table presents the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 of $(4,711,960)

and $(1,560,623), respectively.

Change in Net Position
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

Revenues 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 012
Program Revenues

Charges for Services $ 93,062 § 125,040 § 426,725 $ 464,305 § 519,787 § 589,345

Operating Grants and Contributions 61,149,101 53,293,584 3,532,551 3,201,542 64,681,652 56,495,126

Capital Grants and Contribution 649,855 - 649,855 -
General Revenues

Property Taxes 72,246,057 71,105,078 72,246,057 71,105,078

State Aid 14,988,600 14,857,944 14,988,600 14,857,944

Other/Transfers 1,424,438 534,547 (1,197,816) 1,754 226,622 536,301
Total Revenues and Transfers 150,551,113 139,916,193 2,761,460 3,667,601 153,312,573 143,583,794
Expenses
Instruction 72,414,727 63,726,589 72,414,727 63,726,589
Support Services

Student and Instruction Related Services 46,725,353 44,968,464 46,725,353 44,968,464

General Administrative Services 2,169,360 2,144616 2,169,366 2,144,616

Schoot Administrative Services 3,766,792 4,033,453 3,766,792 4,033,453

Central and Other Support Services 1,765,810 1,639,754 1,765,810 1,639,754

Plant Operation and Maintenance 6,786,985 6,231,930 6,786,985 6,231,930

Pupil Transportation 20,316,662 18,284,409 20,316,662 18,284,409
Food Service/Community School 3,250,492 3,362,764 3,250,492 3,362,704
Unallocated Depreciation 773,373 691,091 773,373 691,091
Interest on Long Term Debt 54,973 61,347 - - 54,973 61,347
Total Expenses 154,774,041 141,781,653 3,250,492 3,362,764 158,024,533 145,144,417
Changes in Net Position (4,222,928) (1,865,460} {(489,032) 304,837 (4,711,960) (1,560,623)
Net Position, Beginning of Year 8,454,915 11,447,078 1,961,362 1,656,525 10,416,277 13,103,603
Prior Period Adjustment - (1,126,703) - - - (1,126,703)
Net Position, End of Year $ 4231987 § 8454915 $ 1472330 § 1,961,362 § 5704317 % 10,416,277




LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Changes in net position. The District’s total revenues and transfers were $153,312,573 and $143,583,794 for the years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Property taxes in excess of $70 million accounted for 47% and 50% of the
total revenues for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. State and Federal formula aid accounted for 10%
and 10%, while operating grants and contributions were 42% and 39% of total revenues for the years ended June 30, 2013
and 2012. The remaining revenues for both years were obtained from capital grants and contributions, investment
earnings and miscellaneous revenues.

The total cost of all programs and services was $158,024,533 and $145,144,417 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The District’s expenses are predominantly related to educating and caring for students. Instruction
represented 46% and 44% of total expenses in fiscal years 2013 and 2012. The purely administrative activities of the
District accounted for only 5% of total costs for both fiscal years 2013 and 2012.

Sources of Revenues
For Fiscal Year 2013

State/
Federal
Aid,
Contributions
and
Grants
52%

Property Taxes
47%

Other
1%

Sources of Expenses

For Fiscal Year 2013
Plant Operations Pupil
& Maintenance  yangportation Other,
4% 13% 2%

General, School
and Central

Administration |ﬂ5tl"u::tlon
5% R 46%
Student &
Instruction
Related Services
30%
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Governmental Activities

The following schedule presents the cost of each of the District’s largest governmental activities programs as well as each
program’s net cost (total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost shows the
financial burden that was placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these functions.

Net position for governmental activities decreased $4,222,928 and $1,865,460 for the year ended June 30, 2013
and 2012, respectively.

The total revenue earned from all governmental activities was $150,551,113 and $139,916,193 for the years
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The cost of all governmental activities was $154,774,041 and $141,781,653 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and
2012,

After applying program revenues, derived from operating grants and contributions of $61,149,101 and
$53,293,584, capital grants and contribution of $649,855 and $-0-, and charges for services of $93,062 and
$125,040 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively; the net cost of services of the District were
$92,882,023 and $88,363,029 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012.

The amount that taxpayers paid for these activities through property taxes was $72,246,057 and $71,105,078 for
fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively. Unrestricted State and Federal aid provided $14,988,600 and
$14,857,944 in fiscal years 2013 and 2012 to fund the District programs.

Net Expense of Governmental Activities
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services
2013 2012 2013 2012
Function/Program:
Instruction $ 72,414,727 § 63,726,589 $ 51,565,594 §$ 48,817,501
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services 46,725,353 44,968,464 12,824,813 12,234,028
General Administrative Services 2,169,366 2,144,616 2,169,366 2,144,616
School Administrative Services 3,766,792 4,033,453 3,391,643 3,658,288
Central and Other Support Services 1,765,810 1,639,754 1,765,810 1,639,754
Plant Operations and Maintenance 6,786,985 6,231,930 4,644,213 4,055,427
Pupil Transportation 20,316,662 18,284,409 15,695,678 15,068,916
Unallocated Depreciation 773,373 691,091 773,373 691,091
interest on Long Term Debt 54,973 61,347 51,533 53,408

Total $ 154,774,041 $ 141,781,653 $ 92,882,023 § 88,363,029
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities

The cost of Business-Type activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $3,250,492 and $3,362,754,
respectively. These expenses relate to the operation of the District’s school breakfast, lunch, snack and summer food and
community service programs. These costs were funded in 2013 and 2012 by operating grants (90% and 87%), charges for
services (10% and 12%) and investment earnings.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements,

Governmental Funds

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of
spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District’s net resources available for spending at the end of
the fiscal year.

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. As the District
completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $754,125 for the year ended June 30,
2013 compared to a fund balance of $847,939 for the year ended June 30, 2012, a decrease of $93,814 for the current
year,

Revenues for the District’s governmental funds were $149,351,113 and $139,916,193, while total expenditures were
$156,389,927 and $142,353,384 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

GENERAL FUND
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District and includes the primary operations in providing educational
services to students from pre-kindergarten through grade 12 including pupil transportation activities and capital outlay

projects.

The following schedule presents a comparison of General Fund Revenues.

Amount of Percent
June 30, Increase Increase
2013 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Local Sources:
Property Taxes $ 70,630,210 § 70,238,004 §$ 392,206 1%
Tuition 93,062 125,040 (31,978) -26%
Other Local Revenue 224,438 534,547 (310,109) -58%
State Sources 34,377,644 28,416,743 5,960,901 21%
Federal Sources 431,144 1,366,972 {935,828) -68%
Total Revenues $ 105,756,498 § 100,681,306 § 5,075,192 5%
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
GENERAL FUND (Continued)
Total General Fund revenues increased by $5,075,192 or 5% from the previous year. Local property taxes increased
$392,206, or 1% from the previous year. Overall state and federal aid increased $5,025,073 or 17% from the previous

year.

The following schedule presents a comparison of General Fund expenditures:

Amount of Percent
June 30, Increase Increase
2613 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Instruction $ 62,891,953 § 57,085,160 § 5,806,793 10%
Support Services 47,889,459 45,883,393 2,006,066 4%
Capital Outlay 127,160 113,504 13,656 12%
Debt Service 36,803 36,438 365 1%
Total General Fund Expenditures $ 110945375 $ 103,118,495 § 7,826,880 8%

The general fund expenditures increased by $7,826,880 or 8%.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey Department of Education guidelines, and is based on
accounting for certain transactions on the budgetary basis of accounting for revenues, expenditures and encumbrances.
The most significant difference between the budgetary basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles is
the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain delayed or deferred state aid payments for budgetary purposes only.
The most significant budgetary fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times through appropriation transfers
between budget line items and appropriation of additional state aid,

General Fund budgetary expenditures exceeded budgetary revenues and other financing sources decreasing budgetary
fund balance $4,600,076 over the previous year. After deducting reserved, committed and assigned fund balances, the
unassigned budgetary fund balance decreased $1,687,627 from $2,830,523 at June 30, 2012 to $1,142,896 at June 30,
2013.
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Special Revenue Fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources which are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes. The revenues include federal funds, state funds, private donations and contributions.

Revenues in the District’s Special Revenue Fund totaled $41,957,103 for the year ended June 30, 2013. State sources
accounted for $20,236,676 or 48% of the total. Federal sources accounted for $21,720,427 or 52% of the total.

Revenues from State sources decreased $504,962 or 2% while federal sources increased $4,176,652 or 24%.

Expenditures of the Special Revenue Fund totaled $42,185,313 for the year ended June 30, 2013. Expenditures wete for
instruction (20%), student and instruction related support services (77%) and transportation and capital outlay (3%).
Expenditures increased $3,902,900 or 10% from the prior year.

At June 30, 2013 the Special Revenue Fund reported deferred revenue of $1,587,008. This amount represents funds that
were received during the 2012/13 school year but were not expended as of June 30, 2013, The district may utilize these
funds in the subsequent year in accordance with the terms and provisions contained in their grant contracts and
agreements.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

The Capital Projects Fund includes all revenue sources for major capital projects of the District. This fund included the
commencement of a lease purchase agreement during 2012-13 to fund certain capital projects.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The District maintains an Enterprise Fund to account for activities which are supported in part through user fees,
Enterprise Fund — The District uses the Enterprise Fund to report activities related to the Food Services and Community
Service programs. The District’s Enterprise Fund provides the same type of information found in the District-wide

financial statements, business-type activities, but in more detail. Factors concerning the finances of this Fund have
already been addressed in the discussion of the District’s business-type activities.
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

CAPITAL ASSETS

At June 30, 2013, the District had invested in excess of $15 million in a broad range of capital assets, including school
buildings, athletic facilities, computer and audio-visual equipment and various other machinery and equipment. Total
depreciation expense for the year was $1,112,522. No depreciation is recorded on construction in progress until such
facilities are placed into service,

Capital Assets at June 30, 2013 and 2012

Governmental Business- Type
Activities Activities Total
2013 2012 013 2012 2013 2011

Land $ 143,800 § 143,800 s 143,800 § 143,800
Buildings and Improvements 35,431,975 35,431,975 §% 302,029 $ 302,029 35,734,004 35,734,004
Machinery and Equipment 4,764,818 4,026,432 592,604 592,604 5,357,422 4,619,036
Construction in Progress 2,472,692 68,500 2,472,992 68,500
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (27,778,213) (26,696,455) (497,581) (466,817) (28,275,794) (27,163,272

Total $ 15035372 $§ 12974252 § 397,052 8 427816 § 15432424 § 13,402,068

Additional information of the District’s capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Long-Term Liabilities

At year-end, the District has $11,538,760 in long-term liabilities; the District had $629,000 in outstanding general
obligation bonds, $18,117 in outstanding capital leases, $5,745,000 in outstanding lease purchase agreements, $178,134 in
outstanding deferred pension obligations and $4,968,509 in employee compensated absences payable. More detailed
financial information about the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

Long-Term Liabilities as of June 30, 2013 and 2012

Governmental Activities

Percentage
2013 2012 Change
General Obligation Bonds $ 629000 § 839,000 -25%
Obligations Under Capital Lease Agreements 18,117 25,047 -28%
Obligations Under Lease Purchase Agreements 5,745,600 100%
Deferred Pension Obligations 178,134 187,880 -5%
Compensated Absences Payable 4,968,509 4,291,809 16%
Total $ 11,538,760 $§ 5,343,736 116%

FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE

While many factors influence the District’s future, the availability of state aid, special education needs, nonpublic school

requirements, capital improvements and the economy will have the most impact on educational and fiscal decisions in the
future.

Many of these factors were considered by the District’s administration during the process of developing the fiscal year
2013-2014 budget. The primary factors were the District’s projected student population, anticipated state and federal aid
as well as increasing salary and related benefit costs.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general
overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Business Office, Lakewood Board of
Education, 200 Ramsey Avenue, Lakewood, New Jersey 08701,
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables, net
Receivables from Other Governments
Accounts

Internal Balances

Inventories

Capital Assets, not being depreciated

Capital Assets, being depreciated, net

Total Assets
LIABILITIES

Cash Overdraft
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable
Accounis Payable and Other Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Unearned Revenue
Accrued Interest Payable
Noncurrent Liabilities
Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

EXHIBIT A-1

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

USDA Commodities

Total Deferred Inflows of Reso

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

of Resources
NET POSITION

Net Investiment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:

Capital Projects

Delbit Service
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

AS OF JUNE 30, 2013
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ 2,175,267 $ - 2,175,267
22,539,630 306,901 22,846,531
5,745,000 5,745,000
(886,933) 886,933

30,469 30,469

2,616,792 2,616,792
12,418,580 397,052 12,815,632
44,608,336 1,621,355 46,229,691
13,923,098 145,218 14,068,316
1,809,654 1,809,654
10,463,160 10,463,160
1,035,919 1,035,919
1,587,008 1,587,008

18,750 18,750

1,948,297 1,948,297
9,590,463 9,590,403
40,376,349 145,218 40,521,567

; 3,807 3,807

urces - 3,807 3,807
40,376,349 149,025 40,525,374
12,022,392 397,052 12,419,444
3,379,137 3,379,137

744,179 744,179
(11,913,721) 1,075,278 (10,838,443)

$ 4,231,987 $ 1,472,330 5,704,317

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Receivables From Other Governtnents
Accounts Receivable

Total Assets

LIABELITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Cash Overdrall
Accounts Payable
Other Liabilities
e to Other Funds
Intergovernmental Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue

Toelal Liabilities

Fund Balances
Restricted
Excess Surplus, Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures
Capital Projects
Debt Service
Assigned
Year End Encumbrances
Unassigined

Total Fund Balances (Deficits)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

LAKEWQOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET

EXHIBIT B-1

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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AS OF JUNE 30, 2013
Special Capital Debt Taotal
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 1,431,088 744,179 % 2,175,267
1,122,810 $ 21,416,820 22,539,630
- $ 5,745,000 5,745,000
3 2,553,898 5 21416820 $ 5,745,000 744,179 $ 30,459,897
b 11,604,762 $ 2,318,330 $ 13,923,098
$ 2,144,612 6,265,791 47,527 8,457,930
1,627,415 377,815 2,005,230
1,922,852 - 1,922,852
1,809,654 1,809,654
1,587,608 1,587,008
5,694,879 21,645,030 2,365,863 - 29,705,772
698,252 698,252
3,379,137 3,379,137
744,179 144,179
326,488 126,488
(4,165,721} {228,210) . : {4,393,93)
(3,140,981) (228,210) 3,379,137 744,179 754,125
b 2,553,898 $  21416,820 3 5,745,000 744,179
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the staterment of
net position {A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activitics are not financial
resources and therelore are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $42,813,585 and the accumulaled depreciation
is $27,778,213. 15,035,372
The District has finaneced capital assets through the issuance of
long-term bonds payable. The acerued interest at year end is (18,750)
Long-torm liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as
{iabtlilies in the funds.
Bonds Payable {629,000}
Obligations Under Lease Purchase (5,745,000)
Capital Leasc Obligations (18,117)
Delerred Pension Obligation (178,134)
Compensated Absences Payable (4,968,509)
(11,538,700}
Net Position of Governmental Activities {Tixhibit A-1) b 4,231,987




LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

REYENULS
Local Sources
Property Tax Levy
Tuition Charges
interest Eamned
Unrestricted Miscellaneous Revenues

Total - Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Tnstruction
Regular Instruction
Special Education Instruction
Other Instruction
School Sponsored Activities and Athletics
Support Services and Undistributed Costs
Student and Instruction Related Services
General Administration
School Administration
Central Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Debt Service
Principal
Interest and Other Charges
Capital Qutlay

Totat Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Lease Purchase Proceeds

Transfers In

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Change in Fund Balances

Tund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

EXHIBIT B-2

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmentat
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ 70,630,210 $ 1,615,847 72,246,057
93,062 93,062
26,862 26,862
197,576 - - - 197,576
70,947,710 - - 1,615,847 72,563,557
34,377,644 $ 20,236,676 21,663 54,635,985
431,144 21,720,427 22,151,571
103,756,498 41,957,103 - 1,637,512 145,351,113
26,641,612 6,896,319 643,740 34,181,671
29,353,774 1,183,903 30,537,677
5,713,797 279,346 5,593,143
1,182,770 1,182,770
13,921,597 32,675,890 46,597,487
2,125,516 2,125,516
3,638,398 3,638,398
1,750,861 1,750,861
6,640,966 6,640,966
16,812,121 500,000 20,312,121
16,676 210,000 226,676
20,127 39,636 59,763
127,160 649,855 2,365,863 3,142,878
110,945,375 42,185,313 2,365,863 893,376 156,388,927
(5,188,877) (228,210) {2,365,863) 744,136 (7,038,814)
5,745,000 5,745,000
1,200,000 - - - £,200,000
1,200,000 - 5,745,000 - 6,945,000
(3,988,877) (228,210) 3,379,137 744,136 {93,814)
847,896 - - 43 847,939
% (3,140980) § (228,210) 3,379,137 $ 744,179 754,125

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
RECONCILIATION OF TIE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2)

Amounts reported for govertunental activities in the statement of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated usefui lives and reported as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital ouflays exceeded depreciation in the
current period.

Depreciation Expense
Capital Qutlay - Additions

The issuance of long term debt provides current financial resources fo governmental funds, while
the repayment of the principal of long term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position.

Debt Issued
Lease Purchase

Principal Repayments
Serial Bonds
Capital Lease
Deferred Pension Obligation

Certain expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds,
Amortization of Debt Issuance Cost

Decrease in Accrued Inierest
Net Increase in Compensated Absences

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit A-2)

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$

EXHIBIT B-3

$ (93,814)
(1,081,758)
3,142,878
2,061,120
(5,745.,000)
210,000
6,930
9,746
226,676
(188)
4978
(676,700)
(671,910)

§ (4,222 928)




EXHIBIT B-4

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30,2013
Business-Type Activities
Totals
f'ood Community Enterprise
Service School Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash b (165,788) $ 20,570 % (145,218)
Receivables
Intergovernmental
Federal 303,076 303,676
State 3,825 3,825
Due from Other Funds 286,933 886,933
[nventories 30,469 - 30,469
Total Current Assets 1,058,515 20,570 1,079,085
Noncurrent Assets
Buildings and Building Improvements 302,029 302,029
Machinery and Equipment 592,604 592,604
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (497,581) - (497,581}
Total Noncurrent Assets 397,052 - 367,052
Total Assels 1,455,567 20,570 1,476,137
DEFERRED INFL.OWS OF RESOURCES
USDA Commodities 3,807 - 3,807
Tota! Deferred Infllows or Resources 3,807 - 3,807
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Asscts 397,052 397,052
Unrestricted 1,054,708 20,570 1,075,278
Total Net Position $ 1,451,760 $ 20,570 § 1,472,330

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this stalement,




OPERATING REVENUES

Local Sources

Daily Sales Reimbursable Programs
Daily Sates Non-Reimbursable Programs

Special ¥unctions
Vending
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenucs

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages

Purchased Professional aund Technical Services

Management Contract
Supplies and Materials
Depreciation

Cost ol Sales
Managemenl Fee

Miscellancous Expenditures

Total Operaling Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Slate Sources

State School Lunch Program

IFederal Sources

National School Breakfast Program
Nationa! School Lunch Program
After School Snack Program
Fresh Fruit and Vegetabie program
Food Distribution Program

Interest and [nvestment Revenue

Total Nonoperating Revenues

Income Before Transfers

Transters Qut

Change in Net Position

Net Posilion, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

IN NET POSITION

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT B-5

Business-Type Activities

Totals
Food Community Enterprise
Service School Funds
77,827 3 77,827
210,877 210,877
112,814 112,814
22,884 22,884
2,323 - 2,323
426,723 - 426,725
977.463 977,463
54,092 54,092
162,650 162,650
109,433 109,433
30,764 30,764
1,564,362 1,564,362
168,800 168,800
182,723 § 205 182,928
3,250,287 205 3,250,492
(2,823,562) (205) (2,823,767)
43,255 43,255
864,062 864,062
2,187,244 2,187,244
59,101 59,101
195,897 195,897
182,992 182,992
2,184 - 2,184
3,534,735 - 3,534,735
THL173 (205) 710,968
(1,200,000} - (1,200,000}
(488,827) {205) {489,032}
1,940,587 20,775 1,961,362
1,451,760 § 20,570 $ 1,472,330

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Staterments are an integral part of this stalement.
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EXHIBIT B-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities

Total
Food Community Enterprise
Service Scheol Funds
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers $ 469,673 $ 469,673
Cash Payments for Employees’
Salaries and Wages (977,463) {977,463}
Cash Payments to Supplicrs for Goods
and Services (2,232,802) § (205) (2,233,007
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activilies (2,740,592) (205) (2,740,791
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Received from Federal Sources 3,145,344 3,145,344
Cash Received rom State Scurces 41,571 41,571
Payments Made to General Fund (2,086,933) - {2,086,933)
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activitics 1,099,982 - 1,099,982
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchasc of Capital Assets - - -
Net Cash Provided by (Used for} Capital and Related
Financing Activities - - -
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
[nterest on [nvestments 2,184 - 2,184
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activilies 2,184 - 2,184
Net Increase (Dectease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (1,638,426) (205} (1,638,631)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,472,638 20,775 1,493 413
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ (165,788) § 20,570 § (145,218)

Reconeiliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss) $ (2,823,562 § (205) (2,823,767)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss)
to Nef Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activitics

Depreciation 30,764 30,764
Non-Cash Federal Assistance - Food Distribution Program 182,992 182,992
Change in Assets and Liabilities
{Increasc)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable 42948 42,948
{Increase)/Decrease in [nventories (6,521} (6,521)
Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts Payabie {168,724) - (168,724)
Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Commodities Revenue 1,511 - 1,511
Total Adjustments 82,970 - 82,970
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities $ (2,740,592) § {205) § (2,740,797

Non-Cash investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
Value Received - Foed Distributien Program $ {84,503 § - k] 184,503

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,



ASSETS
Cash and Cash Eguivalents
Investments
Due from Other Funds

Total Asscts

LIABYLITIES
Due to Student Groups
Due to Other Funds
Intergovernmental Accounts Payabie
Summer Payment Plan Deposits
Flexible Spending Plan Deposits
Accrued Salaries and Wages
Payroll Deductions and Withheldings Payable

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Held In Trust For Unemployment
Claims and Other Purposes

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT B-7

Parent
Resource
Private Center/
Workers Unemploynient Purpose College
Compensation Compensation Schelarship Application Agency
Trust Trust Fund Fund Fund Funds
3 129,090 b 471 $ 50,939 % 15,681 1,264,541
122,279
- 56,813 - - 1,035,519
125,096 57,284 173,218 15,681 2,300,460
77,183
56,813
22,561
1,275,710
5,598
481
- - - - 880,675
- 22,561 - - 2,300,460
$ 129,080 $ 34,723 b 173218  § 15,681

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT B-8

Parent
Resource
Private Center/
Workers Unemployment Purpose College
Compensation Compensation Scholarship Application
Trust Trust Fund Fund Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions
District % 10,000 b3 310,263
Empleyee 44,636
Unallocated 123,430
Donations $ 6,900
Investment Earnings
Interest - 24 165 -
Total Additions 133,430 354,923 7,065 -
DEDUCTIONS
Scholarships Awarded 9,900
Other Expenses 160
Depreciation of Investment Value 804
Workers Compensation Claims 13,559
Unemployment Claims and Contributions - 278,865 - -
Total Deductions 13,559 278,865 10,864 -
Change in Net Position 119,871 76,058 (3.799) -
Net Position, Beginning of Year 9,219 (41,335) 177,017 b 15,681
Net Position, End of Year b 129,090 $ 34,723 $ 173,218 $ 15,681

The accompanying Naotes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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LAKEWOQOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Lakewood Board of Education (the “Board” or the “District”) is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey,
established to function as an education institution. The Board consists of nine elected officials and is responsible for the
fiscal control of the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of
the District, Under existing statutes, the Board's duties and powers include, but are not limited to, the development and
adoption of a school program; the establishment, organization and operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and
disposition of school property,

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the establishment of a
system of accounting and budgetary controls.

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are included to
ensure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds,
departments, boards and agencics that are not legally separate from the District. For the Lakewood Board of Education this
includes general operations, food service, community school and student related activities of the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District is
financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board
and (1) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or
(2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization’s resources; the District is legally obligated or
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the
District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally
dependent on the District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. Based on the
foregoing criteria, the District has no component units. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting
entity as a component unit.

B. New Accounting Standards

During fiscal year 2013, the District adopted the following GASB statements:

e  GASB 62, Cadification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The objective of this statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in following pronouncements issued
on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements,

e  GASB 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effect on a government’s net position. It
alleviates uncertainty about reporting those financial statement elements by providing guidance where none
previously existed.

o GASB 65, ftems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, although not required to be implemented until next
year, the District elected to apply the statement to the current year financial statements. This Statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of
resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. New Accounting Standards (Continued)

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact on the financial
statements include:

GASB 66, Technical Corrections — 2012, an Amendment of GASB Statements 10 and 62, will be effective beginning
with the year ending June 30, 2014. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting
for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two
pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions and No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and
AICPA Pronouncements.

GASB 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an Amendment of GASB 25, will be eftective beginning with the
year ending June 30, 2014. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by state and local
governmental pension plans. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information,
supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. This
Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension
plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The District does
not expect this Statement to impact its financial statements.

GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, will be effective beginning with the year ending June
30, 2015, The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for pensions. It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about
financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement replaces the requirements of
Statement No. 27, dccounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the
requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension
plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The District does not expect this
Statement to impact its financial statements,

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both district-wide financial statements (based on the District as a whole) and fund
financial statements (based on specific District activities or objectives). Both the district-wide and fund financial statements
categorize activities as either governmental activities or business-type activities. While separate district-wide and fund
financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. In the district-wide financial statements, the governmental activities
column incorporates data from governmental funds, while business-type activities incorporate data from the District’s
enterprise funds.
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continued)

District-Wide Financial Statements

The district-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Board of Education. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial
statements. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. In the statement of net position,
both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b)
reflect on a full accrual economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or other governmental entities, including other school districts, who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes, unrestricted
state aid, and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the district-wide financial statements. Exceptions
to this general rule are charges between the Board’s proprietary and fiduciary funds since elimination of these charges would

distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary activities, even though the latter
are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual
governmental and enterprise funds, each reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The District considers all of its
governmental and enterprise funds to be major funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the School District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District, except those to be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. This fund accounts for federal, state and local financial programs, with the exception of grants
for major capital projects and the child nutrition programs.

The capital projects fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases and other revenues used
for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by the

proprietary funds.

The debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

29



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements {(continued)

The District reports the following major proprietary funds which are organized to be self-supporting through user charges:

The food service fund accounts for the activities of the school cafeteria, which provides food service to students as
well as a la carte and catering services for teachers and special events.

The community school fund accounts for the activities of the District’s adult high school and recreational programs.
This program was discontinued during the 2011-12 school year.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund type:

The fiduciary trust fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for the state unemployment and
workmen’s compensation insurance claims, for private donations for scholarship awards, payroll related activities
and student related activities which are supported and controlled by student organizations and clubs, All resources of
the fund, including any earnings on invested resources, may be used to support the intended purpose. There is no
requirement that any portion of these resources be preserved as capital,

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other
funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as
“due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type
activities are reported in the district-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or
economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial
statements.

The district-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements with the exception of the agency fund which
does not have a measurement focus, All assets, all liabilities and all deferred outflows/inflows of resources associated with
these operations (with the exception of the fiduciary funds) are included on the Statement of Net Position. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they are both
measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Board considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
basis of accounting, with the exception of debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments which are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other
financing sources.
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continned)

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Property taxes, tuition, unrestricted state aid, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements (formula-type
grants and aid) are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the
amount is received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. Expenditure-driven grants and
similar awards (reimbursement-type grants and awards) are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have
been incurred and all other eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met, and the amount is
received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. All other revenue items are considered to
be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in
both the district-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The Board has elected not to follow private-sector guidance issued subsequent to December 1, 1989.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance

1. Cash, Cash Egquivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are reported at fair value and are limited by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
2. Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is
expected to be uncollectible.

3. Inventories

The cost of inventories of the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items
are purchased.

Food Service Fund inventories, exclusive of the federal commodities, are valued at cost, using the first-in first-out (FIFO)
method and consist of food and expendable supplies. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenses when consumed
rather than when purchased. The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodity portion of the Food Service
Fund inventory consists of food donated by the USDA. It is valued at estimated market prices by the USDA. The amount of
unused commodities at year-end is reported as a deferred inflow of resources.
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activitics columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Board as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. The District was able to estimate the historical
cost for the initial reporting of these capital assets through back trending. As the District constructs or acquires additional
capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, and equipment of the District is
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land Improvements 20
Buildings 15-50
Building Improvements 20
Machinery and Equipment 5-20

5. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred cutflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then. The government does not have any items that qualify for reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources {revenue) until that time. The
government has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for
reporting in this category. This item is the amount of unused government commodities, which is reported in the Food
Service Enterprise Fund.

6. Compensated Absences

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate (with certain restrictions) earned but unused vacation, personal,
and sick leave benefits. A long-term liability of accumulated vacation, personal and sick leave and salary related payments
has been recorded in the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements, representing the Board’s
commitment to fund such costs from future operations. Proprietary Funds accrue accumulated vacation, personal and sick
leave and salary related payments in the period that they are earned. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only to
the amount actually due at year end as a result of employee resignations and retirements.
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

7. Long-Term Obligations

In the district-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net position.

8. Net Position/Fund Balance

District-Wide Statements

In the district-wide statements, there are three classes of net position:

* Net investment in capital assets — consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated depreciation) reduced by
outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included.

¢ Restricted net position — reports net position when constraints placed on the residual amount of noncapital assets
are either externally imposed by creditors {(such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation,

» Unrestricted net position — any portion of net position not already classified as either net investment in capital
assets or net position — restricted is classified as net position — unrestricted.

Governmental Fund Statements

Fund balance categories are designed to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on the District’s fund balance
more transparent. These categories are comprised of a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and
higher levels of government}, through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Excess Surplus — Designated for Subsequent Year's Expendifures - This restriction was created in accordance with
NISA 18A:7F-7 to represent the June 30, 2012 audited excess surplus that was appropriated in the 2013/2014
original budget certified for taxes.

Capital Projects — Represents fund balance restricted specifically for capital acquisitions and improvements in the
Capital Projects Fund.

Debt Service — Represents fund balance restricted specifically for the repayment of long-term debt principal and interest
in the Debt Service Fund,
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

8. Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

Governmental Fund Statements (Continued)

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the
governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority.

Year-End Encumbrances — Represent outstanding purchase orders for goods or services approved by management for
specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have not yet been
received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Unassigned Fund Balance — Represents fund balance that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific
purposes within the governmental funds.

9. Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s
presentation.

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

1. Program Revenues

Amounts reporied as program revenues in the district-wide statement of activities include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods or services, provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions.
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all property taxes, unrestricted state aid, investment eamings and miscellaneous revenues.

2. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied pursuant to Jaw and are collected by the municipality and are transferred to the District as
requested, Property tax revenue is recognized in the year they are levied and become available. Property taxes collected
in advance of the year-end for which they are levied and transferred to the District are reported as deferred inflows of
resources. The tax bills are mailed annually in June by the municipal tax collector and are levied and due in four
quarterly installments on August 1, November 1, February 1 and May 1 of the fiscal year. When unpaid, taxes or any
other municipal lien, or part thereof, on real property, remains in arrears on April 1% in the year following the calendar
year levy when the same became in arrears, the tax collector of the municipality shall, subject to the provisions of New
Jersey Statute, enforce the lien by placing the property on a tax sale. The municipality may institute annual “in rem” tax
foreclosure proceedings to enforce the tax collection or acquisition of title to the property.
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses (Continued)

3. Tuition Revenues and Expenditures

Tuition Revenues - Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined and certified by the State Department of Education.

Tuition Expenditures - Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 were based on rates established by the
receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been certified by the State Department of
Education.

4. Proprietary Funds, Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the food service enterprise fund are charges to customers
for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets, All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses. Federal and State subsidies for the food service operation are considered nonoperating
revenues.

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

In accordance with the requirements of the New Jersey Department of Education (“the Department™), the District annually
prepares its operating budget for the forthcoming year. The budget, except for the general fund and special revenue fund,
which is more fully explained below and in the notes to the required supplementary information, is prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan for expenditures
and the proposed means for financing them. Capital lease transactions are accounted for on the GAAP basis.

The annual budget is adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general, special revenue and debt service funds. The
District is not required to adopt an annual budget for the capital projects fund. The budget is submitted to the county
superintendent for review and approval prior to adoption. Prior to the 2012/2013 budget year, the annual budget was
required to be voted upon at the annual school election held on the third Tuesday in April. On January 17, 2012, Chapter
202 of the Laws of P.L. 2011 was approved which established procedures for moving the date of a school district’s annual
school election from April to the general election in November, Under the new law, districts that have their school board
members elected in November no longer have to submit their budgets that meet levy cap requirements for voter approval
beginning with the 2012/2013 budget year. Only a school board decision to exceed the tax levy cap would require voier
approval for the additional amount on the November ballot. On November 15, 2012, the Board adopted a resolution to move
its annual election to the date of the general elections in accordance with the law; therefore voter approval of the annual
budget is not required, beginning with the 2013/14 budget.
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continned)

A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

Budget adoptions and amendments are recorded in the District's board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board of
Trustees as needed throughout the year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is prepared
by fund source and amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fund, program, function, object and amount. The
legal level of budgetary control is established at the line item account within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as
the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C.
6:20-2A.2(m)i. The Board approved several budget transfers during 2012/2013. During 2012/2013 the Board increased the
original budget by $25,026,765. The increase was funded by additional state and federal aid appropriated, an operating
transfer from the Food Service Enterprise Fund, a withdrawal from Capital Reserve, grant awards and the reappropriation of
prior year general fund encumbrances

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information (RSI). Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable
appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as committed
and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments
related to unperformed contracts for goods and services which are reappropriated and honored during the subsequent fiscal
year.

B. Excess Expenditures Over Appropriations

The following is a summary of expenditures in excess of available appropriations. The overexpended appropriations
resuited in unfavorable variances.

Final Unfavorable
Budget Actual Variance
General Fund
Instruction
Basic Skills/Remedial - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers $ 1,263,702 $ 1,311,807 § 48,105

Undistributed Expenditures
Tuition
Tuition to Private Schools - Disabled
within State 16,917,387 17,520,936 603,549
Student Transportation Services

Contracted Services (Between Home
and School) - Vendors 16,694,820 17,106,490 411,670

The above variances were offset with other available resources.
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

C. Deficit Fund Equity

The District has an unassigned (deficit) fund balance of $4,165,721 in the General Fund and $228,210 in the Special
Revenue Fund as of June 30, 2013 as reported in the fund financial statements (modified accrual basis), NJSA 18A:22-44.2
provides that in the event a state school aid payment is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record
these delayed state aid payments as revenue, for budget purposes only, in the current school budget year. The statute
provides legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget year, GASB Statement No. 33,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions”, requires that intergovernmental {ransactions (revenue,
expenditure, asset, liability) should be recognized in symmetry (i.e., if one government recognizes an asset, the other
government recognizes a liability). Since the State of New Jersey is recording certain 2012/2013 budgeted state aid
payments in the subsequent fiscal year, the school district cannot recognize such payments on the GAAP (fund) financial
statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to the timing difference of recording these delayed state aid
payments, the General and Special Revenue Fund deficits do not alone indicate that the District is facing financial
difficulties; however, unless the State of New Jersey budgets the delayed payments in future years, the District may also
report fund balance deficits in the future,

Pursuant to NJSA 18A:22-44.2, any negative unreserved, undesignated (i.e., unassigned) general fund balance that is
reported as a direct result of a delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not considered as a violation
of New Jersey Statute or regulation and is not considered an item in need of corrective action. The District deficits in the
GAAP (fund) financial statements of $4,165,721 in the General Fund and $228,210 in the Special Revenue Fund are less
than or equal to the delayed state aid payments,

D. Capital Reserve

A capital reserve account has been established by the District. The accumulation of funds will be used for capital outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years, The capital reserve is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in
the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan
(LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by
appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts or both, A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-

14.1(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LREP,

The activity of the capital reserve for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2012 $ 256,500
Withdrawals

Approved by Board Resolution (256,500)
Balance, June 30,2013 $ -
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

E. Calculation of Excess Surplus

In accordance with N.J.S. A, 18A:7F-7, as amended, the restricted fund balance for Reserved Excess Surplus is a required
calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA).
New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance in excess of 2% of budget expenditures at
the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their
subsequent year’s budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2013 is $698,252. Of this amount, $698,252 was
designated and appropriated in the 2013/2014 original budget certified for taxes. There is no amount required to be
appropriated in the 2014/2015 original budget certified for taxes.

NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash Deposits and Investments

Cash Deposits

The Board's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), Securities Investor
Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Board is required
to deposit their funds in a depository which is protecting such funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jersey Governmental
Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business in the State of New Jersey to pledge collateral equal to at least
5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average amount of its public funds in excess of the lesser of
75% of its capital funds or $200 million for all deposits not covered by the FDIC.

Bank balances for interest bearing accounts are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. Under
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, temporary unlimited deposit insurance coverage was
provided for non-interest bearing accounts from December 31, 2010 through December 31, 2012. SIPC replaces cash claims
up to a maximum of $250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At June 30, 2013, the book value of the Board's deposits
reflected a cash deficit of $10,432,327 and bank and brokerage firm balances of the Board’s deposits amounted to

$8,908,583.  The Board's deposits which are displayed on the various fund balance sheets as "cash" or “cash and cash
equivalents” are categorized as:

Depository Account
Insured $ 8,848,179
Uninsured and Collateralized 60,404

$ 8,908,583

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2013 the
Board’s bank balance of $60,404 was exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Depository Aceount

Uninsured and Collateralized:
Collateral held by pledging financial institution's trust department
not in the Board's name 3 60,404
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A. Cash Deposits and Investmenis (Continued)

Invesiments

The Board is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
Examples of the allowable investments are bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America, Government Money Market Mutual Funds, bonds or other obligations of the school district or
bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units within which the school district is located, Local Government investment
pools, and agreements or the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if transacted in accordance with the above statute.

As of June 30, 2013, the Board had the following investinents:

Fair
Yalue
Investment;
U.S. Government Securities
Mutual Funds b 122,279

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments — For an investment, this is the risk, that in the event of the failure of the counterparty,
the Board will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are held by an outside party.
The Board does not have a policy for custodial risk. As of June 30, 2013, $122,279 of the Board’s investments was exposed
to custodial credit risk as foliows:

Fair
Value
Depository Account
Uninsured and Collateralized:
Coilateral held by pledging financial institution's trust department
not in the Board's name S 122,279

Interest Rate Risk — The Board does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk — State law limits investments as noted above (N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37). The District does not have an
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices,

Concentration of Credit Risk — The Board places no limit in the amount the District may invest in any one issuer. More
than five (5) percent of the Board’s investments are in Nuveen Mutual Funds. These investments are 100% of the
District’s total investments,

The fair value of the above-listed investments were based on quoted market prices.
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Conatinued)

B. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2013 for the district’s individual major funds, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including
the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Special Capital Food
General Revenue Projects Service Total

Receivables:

Accounts $ 5,745,000 $ 5,745,000
Intergovernmental $ 1,122,810 $ 21,416,820 - $ 306,901 22,846,531
Gross Receivables 1,122,810 21,416,820 5,745,000 306,901 28,591,531
Less: Allowance for

Uncoliectibles - - - -

Net Total Receivables $ 1,122,810 §$ 21,416,820 $ 5,745,000 $§ 306,501 $ 28,591,531

C. Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds

were as follows:

Total
Special Revenue Fund
Unencumbered Grant Draw Downs 3 5,718
Grant Draw Downs Reserved for Encumbrances 1,581,290
Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds $ 1,587,008
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D. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land

Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated;

Land Improvements
Buildings and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Land Improvements

Buildings and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Governmental Activities Capital Asscts, Net

Business-Type Activities:

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Building and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Building and Building Improvements
Machinery and Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net

Balance, Balance,

July 1, 2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 2013
$ 143,800 $ 143,800
68,500 $ 2,404,492 - 2,472,992
212,300 2,404,492 - 2,616,792
2,406,289 2,406,289
33,025,686 33,025,686
4,026,432 738,386 - 4,764,818
39,458,407 738,386 - 40,196,793
(2,115,075) (24,043) (2,139,118)
{22,232,326) (574,168) (22,506,494)
(2,349,054) (483,547) - (2,832,601)
{26,696,455) (1,081,758 - (27,778,213)
12,761,952 (343,372) - 12,418,580

$ 12974252 §% 2,061,120 § - $ 15,035372

Balance, Balance,

July 1,2012  Increases Decreases June 30,2013
$ 302,029 $ 302,029
592,604 - - 592,604
894,633 - - 894,633
(33,224) § (6,041) - (39,265)
{433,593) (24,723) - (458.316)
(466,817) (30,764) . (497,581)
427,816 (30,764) - 397.052

$ 427816 § (30,764) $ - 3 397.052
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NOTE 3 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)
D. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Instruction
Regular $ 53,300
Total Instruction 53,300

Support Services

General Administration 34,557
School Administration 83,623
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 136,905
Total Support Services 255,085
Unallocated 773,373
Total Support Services 1,028,458
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 1,081,758

Business-Type Activities:
Food Service Fund $ 30,764

Total Depreciation Expense-Business-Type Activities $ 30,764

E. Interfund Receivables, Pavables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2013, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Food Service Fund General Fund $ 886,933
Payroll Agency Fund General Fund 1,035,919
Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund Payrell Agency Fund 56,813
$ 1,979,665

The above balances are the result of revenues earned or other financing sources received in one fund which are due to
another fund and/or expenditures paid by one fund on behalf of another fund and/or to cover cash balances which were in
an overdraft position.

The District expects all interfund balances to be liquidated within one year.
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E. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers {Continued)

Interfund transfers

Transfer In:

General Fund Total
Transfer Out;
Food Service Fund $ 1,200,000 $ 1,200,000
Total Transfers Out $ 1,200,000 $ 1,200,000

The above transfers are the result of revenues earned and/or other financing sources received in one fund to finance
expenditures in another fund.

F. Leases

Operating Leases

The District leases three (3) properties/facilities under noncancelable operating leases. Lease payments for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013 were $1,003,429. The future minimum lease payments for these operating leases are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Ending June 30 Amount
2014 $ 347,144
2015 213,121
Total S 560,265

Additionally, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:20-4.2(h), the School District entered into two (2) sale and lease-back contracts
on certain instructional materials (i.e., textbooks). One contract was entered into during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2007, totaling $1,998,120, and was for a term of five years at interest rates of 7.03% and 4.47%. The second contract

was entered into during the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2009, totaling $950,000, and was for a term of five years at an
interest rate of 3.66%.

Rental payments under operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 were $695,539.
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F. Leases (Continued)

Capital Leases

The District is leasing copiers totaling $35,254 under capital leases. The leases are for terms of 5 years.

The capital assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental

Activities
Machinery and Equipment $ 35,254
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (21,153)
$ 14,101

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2013
were as follows:

Fiscal Governmental
Year Ending June 30 Activities
2014 $ 8,362
2015 8,362
2016 2,870
Total minimum lease payments 19,564
Less: amount representing interest (1,477)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 18,117
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F. Leases (Continued)

Lease Purchase Aoreements

The District has entered into a five (5) year lease purchase agreement for the funding of certain capital projects to be
undertaken by the District.

The maturity schedule of the remaining lease payments for principal and interest is as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Fiscal
Year Ending Lease-Purchase
June 30 Principal Interest Total

2014 $ 745,000 $ 47140 $ 792,740
2015 960,000 77,500 977,500
2016 1,100,000 63,550 1,163,550
2017 1,400,000 46,500 1,446,500
2018 1,660,000 24,800 1,624,800

$ 5,745,000 3 260,090 $ 6,005,090

G. Long-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The Board issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
and other capital assets. The full faith and credit of the Board are irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of
the bonds and the interest thereon.

Bonds payable at June 30, 2013 are comprised of the following issues:
$2,494,000, 2000 Bonds, due in annual

installments of $209,000 to $210,000
through August 1, 2015, interest at 5.40% $629,000
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G. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The Board's schedule of principal and interest for long-term debt issued and outstanding is as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Year Ending Serial Bonds
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 210,000 $ 28,296 $ 238,296
2015 210,000 16,956 226,956
2016 209,000 5,643 214,643
$ 629,000 % 50,895 $ 679,895

Statutory Borrowing Power

The Board's remaining borrowing power under N.J.S, 18A:24-19, as amended, at June 30, 2013 was as folows:

4% of Equalized Valuation Basis (Municipal) $ 304,964,374
Less: Net Debt (Including Unfunded Authorizations) (6,374,000)
Remaining Borrowing Power $ 208,590,374

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Due
Balance, Balance, Within
July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2013 One Year

Governmental Activities;

General Obligation Bonds $ 839,600 $ 210,000 § 629000 § 210,000
Obligations Under Lease Purchase $ 5,745,000 5,745,000 § 745,000
Capital Lease Payable 25,047 6,930 18,117 7,397
Compensated Absences 4,291,809 1,014,706 338,006 4,968,509 975,000
Deferred Pension Obligations 187,880 - 9,746 178,134 10,900
Governmental activity
Long-term liabilities $ 5343,736 § 6,759,706 $ 564,682 § 11,538,760 $ 1,948297

For the governmental activities, the liabilities for compensated absences and deferred pension obligations are generally

liquidated by the general fund.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to property, general liability, automobile coverage, theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; student accident; termination of employees and
natural disasters, The Board has obtained commercial insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the
exposure to the District should they occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the statistical section
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The District is a member of the School Alliance Insurance Fund (SAIF). The Fund is a risk sharing public entity pool,
established for the purpose of insuring against worker's compensation claims.

The relationship between the Board and the insurance fund is governed by a contract and by-laws that have been adopted by
resolution of each unit's governing body. The Board is contractually obligated to make all annual and supplementary
contributions to the fund, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate with the management of the fund, its claims
administrator and attorneys in claims investigation and settlement, and to follow risk management procedures as outlined by
the fund. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of the fund attributable to a membership year during
which they were a member,

SAITF provides its members with risk management services, including the defense of and settlement of claims and to establish
reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention procedures to be followed by the members. Complete financial
statements of the insurance fund are on file with the School's Business Administrator.

There has been no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements in
excess of insurance coverage’s in any of the prior three years.

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation [nsurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement
Method”. Under this plan the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid
to its former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the
State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursemenis to the State for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s fiduciary trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Fiscal
Year District Employee Amount Ending
Ended Contributions Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2013 $ 310,263 $ 44,636 $ 278,865 $ 34,723
2012 447,010 48,648 617,675 (41,335)
2011 537,580 85,478 599,291 80,648

B. Contfingent Liabilities
The District is a party defendant in some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a school district of its size and scope of

operation. In the opinion of the Board's Attorney the potential claims against the District not covered by insurance policies
would not materially affect the financial condition of the District.
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B. Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

Federal and State Awards — The Board participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially
funded by grants received from other governmental units, Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the
appropriate grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the
Board may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of June 30, 2013, significant amounts of grant expenditures
have not been audited by the various grantor agencies but the Board believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on
subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds or the overall financial position
of the District.

C. Federal Arbitrage Regulations

The District is subject to Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code as it pertains to the arbitrage rebate on all tax-exempt
obligations, both long and short-term debt. Under the 1986 Tax Reform Act, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) required
that all excess earnings from investment proceeds be rebated to the IRS. Arbitrage, for purposes of these regulations, is
defined as the difference between the yield on the investment and the yield on the obligations issued. If there are excess
earnings, this amount may be required to be rebated to the IRS. At June 30, 2013, the District has not estimated its arbitrage
earnings due to the IRS, if any.

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following contributory defined benefit public employee retirement
systems (retirement systems) covering substantially all eligible Board employees:

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to
provide coverage, including post-retirement health care, to substantially all full time employees of the State or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered
retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension
benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time certified teachers or professional staff of
the public school systems in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of
service for pension benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage.

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following defined contribution public employee retirement
program covering certain state and local government employees which include those Board employees who are eligible
for pension coverage.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) — established under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and

Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 to provide coverage to elected and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007.
Membership is mandatory for such individuals with vesting occurring after one (1) year of membership.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Other Pension Funds

The State established and administers a Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust Fund (SACT) which is available to active
members of the State-administered retirement systems to purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided
by their retirement system. The state or local government employers do not appropriate funds to SACT.

The cost of living increase for PERS and TPAF, are funded directly by each of the respective systems and are considered in
the annual actuarial calculation of the required State contribution for the system.

According to state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should any
retirement system be terminated.

The State of New Jersey, Departinent of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of each of the above systems. The
financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at
www.state.nj.us/{reasury/pensions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the retirement systems are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer contributions
are recognized when payable to the retirement systems. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the retirement systems.

Significant Legislation

P.L. 2011, ¢.78, effective June 28, 2011, made various changes to the manner in which TPAF and PERS operate and to
the benefit provisions of those systems.

The legislation’s provisions impacting employee pension and heaith benefits include:

e For new members of TPAF and PERS hired on or after June 28, 2011 (Tier 5 members), the years of creditable
service needed for early retirement benefits increased from 25 to 30 years and the early retirement age increased
from 55 to 65.

» The eligibility age to qualify for a service retirement in the TPAF and PERS increased from age 62 to 65 for Tier
5 members.

* The annual benefit under special retirement for new PFRS members enrolled after June 28, 2011 (Tier 3
members) decreased from 65 percent of final compensation to 60 percent of final compensation after 25 years of
service and from 70 percent of final compensation to 65 percent of final compensation after 30 or more years of
service.

s It increased the TPAF and PERS active member rates from 5.5 percent of annual compensation to 6.5 percent
plus an additional 1 percent phased-in over 7 years for members hired or reappointed on or after June 28, 2011.
For Fiscal Year 2012, the member contribution rates increased in October 2011, The phase-in of the additional
incremental member contributions for TPAF and PERS members takes place in July of each subsequent fiscal
year.
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NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Significant Legislation (Continued)

¢ The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) additional increases to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries was suspended. COLA increases may be reactivated at a future date as permitted by this law.

» It changed the method for amortizing the pension system’s unfunded accrued liability (from a level percent of pay
method to a level dollar of pay method).

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last
reported sales price at current exchange rates. Mortgages are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments,
and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on
independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair values.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, issues publicly available financial reports that
include the financial statements of the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund, Common Pension Fund A, Common
Pension Fund B, Common Pension Fund D and Common Pension Fund E. The financial reports may be obtained in writing
to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, P.O. Box 290, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-
0290.

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the aggregate funded ratio for all the State administered
retirement systems including TPAF and PERS, is 67.5 percent with an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $41.7 billion.
The aggregate funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for the State-funded systems is 60.8 percent and $30.1 billion,
and the aggregate funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for local PERS and Police and Firemen’s Retirement
System (“PFRS™) is 77.5 percent and $11.6 billion.

'The funded status and funding progress of the retirement systems is based on actuarial valuations which involve estimates of
the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of
future events.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the
retirement systems in effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the
employer and members at that point in time. The projection of benefits for financing reporting purposes does not explicitly
incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and
members in the future,

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
In the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the five year
average of market value was used as the asset valuation method for the retirement systems., The actuarial assumptions

included (a) a revised investment rate of return for all retirement systems from 8.25 percent to 7.95 percent and (b) revised
projected salary increases of 4.52 percent for the PERS and 3.90 percent for TPAF,

50




LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 4 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Empioyer and Employee Pension Contributions

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and contributions are required by active members and
participating employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation with
the amount of contributions by the State of New Jersey contingent upon the Annual Appropriations Act. As defined, the
retirement systems require employee contributions based on 6.5% for PERS, 6.5% for TPAF and 5.50% for DCRP of the
employee’s annual compensation.

Annual Pension Costs (APC)

Per the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27 for the year ended June 30, 2013 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing plan
with special funding situations, the annual pension cost differs from the annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a
cost sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, the annual pension cost equals contributions made. TPAF
employer contributions are made annually by the State of New Jersey to the pension system on behalf of the Board. PERS
employer contributions are made annually by the Board to the pension system in accordance with Chapter 114, P.L.. 1997, In
the DCRP, which is a defined contribution plan, member contributions are matched by a 3% employer contribution.

During the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 the Board was required to contribute for PERS and DCRP and the
State of New Jersey was required to contribute for TPAF for normal cost pension and accrued liability contributions
{including non-contributory group life insurance (NCGI)) the following amounts:

Fiscal
Year Ended On-behalf
June 30 PERS TPAF DCRP
2013 § 506,356 § 2,096,738 NONE
2012 557,032 1,053,395 NONE
2011 561,503 111,288 NONE

The State contributed $2,096,738 and $1,053,395 during 2012/2013 and 2011/2012, respectively for normal cost pension,
accrued liability and the NCGI premium. For fiscal year 2010/2011, the State did not contribute to the TPAF for normal cost
and accrued liability; however, the State contributed $111,288 for the NCGI premium only. During 2009/2010 school year,
the Board contributed only 50% of its normal and accrued liability components of the PERS obligation and deferred the
remaining 50%. The deferred amount is being paid back with interest over 15 years beginning in the 2011/2012 fiscal year.
The District is permitted to payoff the deferred PERS pension obligation at any time. A long-term lability of the deferred
pension obligation for PERS has been recorded in the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements.

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $2,115,181during the year
ended June 30, 2013 for the employer’s share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their base
salaries. This amount, along with the on-behalf TPAF pension contribution, has been included in the district-wide financial
statements and the fund financial statements as a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB No. 24,
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the post-retirement health benefit program plans for school districts. The
Plans are cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans.

As a result of implementing Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for
Post-emplovment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans (OPEB), effective for Fiscal Year 2007, the State Health Benefits
Program (SHBP), and the Prescription Drug Program (PDP), and Post-Retirement Medical (PRM) of the PERS and TPAF
are combined and reported as Pension and Other employee Benefit Trust Funds in the State’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). Specifically, SHBP-State, PDP-State, and the PRM of the PERS are combined and reported as a
Health Benefits Program Fund — State classified as a single employer plan. The SHBP-Local, PDP-Local, and the PRM of
the TPAF are combined and reported as Health Benefits Program Fund —Local Government classified as a cost-sharing
multiple-employver plan in the State’s CAFR. The post-retirement benefit programs had a total of 566 state and local
participating employers and contributing entities for Fiscal Year 2012,

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following health benefit programs covering certain state and local
government employees, including those Board employees and retirees eligible for coverage.

Health Benefits Program Fund (HBPF) — Local Education (including Prescription Drug Program Fund) — The State of
New Jersey provides free coverage to members of the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund who retire from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement. Under the provisions of P.L. 1992, ¢.126,
the State also provides free coverage to members of the Public Employees’ Retirement System and Alternate Benefits
Program who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement if the
member’s employer does not provide this coverage. Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement
medical coverage to their employees. Retirees who are not eligible for employer paid health coverage at retirement can
continue in the program if their employer participates in this program or if they are participating in the health benefits plan of
their former employer and are enrolled in Medicare parts A and B by paying the cost of the insurance for themselves and
their covered dependents. Also, education employees are eligible for the PDP coverage afier 60 days of employment.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of the above Fund. The financial
reports may be accessed via the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website
at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the health benefit programs are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer
contributions are recognized when payable to the health benefit programs. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the health benefit programs.

Significant Legislation

P.L. 2011, ¢.78, effective October 2011, sets new employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer-
provided health benefit coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage. The
rate of contribution is determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected level of coverage. The increased
employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period for those employed prior to this new legislation’s effective
date with a minimum contribution required to be at least 1.5% of salary.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair
values.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the State had a $48.9 billion unfunded actuarial accrued liability
for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) which is made up to $18.0 billion for state active and retired members and $30.9
billion for education employees and retirees that become the obligation of the State of New Jersey upon retirement.

The funded status and funding progress of the OPEB is based on actuarial valuations which involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the future. These amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of future
events.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the OPEB in
effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the employer and members
at the point in time. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential
effects of legal contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and members in the
future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the July 1, 2011, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method. The actuarial
assumptions included an assumed investment rate of return of 4,50 percent.

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions

P.L. 1987, ¢. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS), respectively to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees and education
employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. As of June 30, 2012,
there were 97,661, retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits and the State contributed $958.9 million on their
behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State and in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢.62.
Funding of post-retirement medical benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal
Year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, ¢.126, which provides free health benefits to members of

PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education with 25 years of service. The State paid
$146.6 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 16,618 cligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2012.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions (Continued)

The State sets the contribution rate based on a pay as you go basis and not on the annual required contribution of the
employers {ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State’s
confributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for TPAF retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School
District for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $2,370,882, $2,117,601 and $2,090,145, respectively, which
equaled the required contributions for each year. The State’s contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for
PERS retirees” post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School District was not determined or made available by the State of
New Jersey.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES




REVENUES
Local Sources
Local Tax Levy
Tuition
Investment Income
Unrestricted Miscellaneous Revenues

Total Local Sources

Federal Sources:
Medicaid Reimburseinent
Education Jobs Fund

Total Federal Sources

State Sources
Categorical Special Education Aid
Equalization Aid
Categorical Security Aid
Categorical Transportation Aid
Extraordinary Aid
Other State Aids:
Non Public Transpottation Aid
On Behalf TPAF Pension
Contribution (Non Budgeted)

On Behalf TPAF Non-Contributory Life Insurance

Contribution (Non Budgeted)
On Behalf TPAF Post Retirement
Medical Contribution {Non Budgeted}

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contribution

{Non Budgeted)
Total State Sources
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT
Instruction - Regular Programs
Salaries of Teachers
Kindergarien
Grades 1-5
Grades 6-8
Grades 9-12
Regular Programs - Home Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Purchased Professional/Educational Services

Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
Other Salaries
Purchased Professional/Educational Services
Purchased Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total Regular Programs

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNF 30, 2013

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Adjustments Budypet Actuai {Unfavorable)
70,630,210 70,630,210 § 70,630,210
93,062 § 93,062
26,862 26,862
248,000 - 248,000 197,576 (50,424)
70,878,210 - 70,878,210 70,947,710 69,500
447,334 447,334 422,204 (25,130)
- 3 8,940 8,940 8,940 -
447,334 8,940 456,274 431,144 (25,130)
2,504,408 2,904,408 2,904 408
14,972,074 14,972,074 14,972,074
2,136,065 2,136,065 2,136,065
3,865,747 3,865,747 1,865,747
3,025,000 3,025,000 2,972,875 (52,125)
270,050 62,425 332,475 332,475
1,991,935 1,991,935
104,803 104,803
2,370,882 2,370,882
- - - 2,115,181 2,115,181
27,113,344 62,425 27,235,769 33,766,445 6,530,676
08,498,888 71,365 98,570,253 105,145,299 6,575,046
850,000 (163,727 686,273 686,273
6,970,151 181,956 7,152,107 7,152,107
3,518,000 317211} 3,200,78% 3,200,789
4,540,700 {274,157} 4,266,543 4,266,543
250,000 (48,848} 201,152 201,152
155,000 (4,264} 150,736 130,735 H
317,000 (22,915} 294,085 287,175 6,910
120,000 (59,229} 60,771 60,771
20,000 (20,000}
250,000 (44,251) 205,749 205,749
455,500 (27,841) 427,659 427,547 112
245,400 19,162 264,562 264,562
33,250 (17,748) 15,502 15,502 -
17,725,001 (799,073) 16,925 928 16,918,905 7,023

55

(Continued)




EXHIBIT C-1
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Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual {l/nfavorable)
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT
Special Education
Learning and/or Language Disabilities

Salaries of Teachers $ 645,545 % {(19.714) % 565,83t % 565,831

Other Salaries for Instruction 230,085 (3.9t 226,174 226,174

Purchased Professional/Educational Services 1,000 (1,000)

General Supplies 8,500 (99) 8,401 2,401 -

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 885,130 (84,724} 800,406 800,406 -

Behavioral Disabilities

Salarics of Teachers 300,431 (248.050) 52,381 52,381

Other Salaries for Instruction 47,020 10,245 57,265 57,265

General Supplies 2,000 921 2.921 2,921 -
Total Behavioral Disabilities 349,451 (236,884) 112,567 112,567 -

Multiple Disabilities

Salaries of Teachers 566,705 176,298 743,003 743,003

Other Salarics for Instruction 100,701 48,676 149,377 149,377

Purchased Professional/Educational Services 500 (500}

General Supplies 11,000 (1,635} 9.365 9,365 -
Total Multiple Disabilities 678,906 222,839 961,745 901,745 -
Resource Room/Resource Center

Salaries of Teachers 2,791,265 (27,37 2,763,888 2,763,888

Other Salaries for Instruction 146,407 (60,41 85,990 85,950

General Supplies 14,250 {673) 13,577 13,577

Texthooks 2.000 {2,600) - - -
Total Resource Room 2953922 (90.,467) 2,863,455 2,863,455 -

Autism

Salaries of Teachers 161,000 12,074 173,074 173,074

Other Salaries for Instruction 45,000 (13,593} 31,407 31407

Purchased Professional/Educational Services 1,000 (1,000}

General Supplies 6,000 6,000 6,000

Cther Objects 1,200 (1,200) - - -
Total Autism 214,200 (3,719) 210,481 210,481 -
Preschool Disabilities - Full-Time

Salaries of Teachers 500,000 213,754 713,754 713,754

Gther Salaries for Instruction 604,000 {79,719) 524,281 524,281

Purchased Professional/Educational Services 2,000 (2,000)

General Supplics 8.500 (4,892) 3,608 3,608 -

Total Preschocl Disabilities - Part-Time 1,114,500 127,143 1,241,643 1,241,643 -
Total Special Education 6,196,109 {65,812) 6,130,297 6,130,297 -
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EXPENDITURLS
CURRENT
Basic Skills/Remedial - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction

Total Basic Skills/Remedial

Bilingual Education - Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for [nstruction
General Supplies
Texthooks

Total Bilingual Education

School Sponsored Co-Curricular Activities
Salaries
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials

Total School Spensored Co-Curricular Activities

School Sponsored Athletics - Instruction
Salaries
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total School Sponsored Athletics - Instruction

Total - Instruction

Undistributed Expenditures
Instruction
Tuition LEA's within State - Regular
Tuition LEA's within State - Special
Tuition to County Vocational Schoo? District-Reg.
Tuition to County Vocational Schoof District-Spec.
Tuition to CS5D and Regional Day Schools
Tuition to Private Schools - Disabled w/i State
Tuition to Private Schools - Disabled and Other LEAs~
Special Outside State
Tuition - State Facilities
Tuition - Other

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Instruction

Attendance and Social Work Services
Salaries
Gther Purchased Services

Total Attendance and Social Work Services

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULL
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2613

EXHIBIT C-1
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Variance
Original Finat Favorable
Budpet Adjustments Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
1,600,006 & 263,002 % 1,263,702 % 1,311,807 § (48,105)
64,000 (64,000) - - -
1,064,000 199,702 1,263,702 1,311,807 (48,10%5)
2,200,000 216,549 2,419,949 2,419,949
125,000 130,576 255,976 255,976
7,000 10,490 17,490 17,490
1,000 {1,000) - - -
2,333,000 360,415 2,683,415 2,693,415 -
100,000 31,856 131,856 131,856
15,000 (11,465} 3,535 3,535
29,500 (12,857} 16,603 16,603 -
144,500 7.494 151,994 151,994 -
500,000 78,894 578,894 578,894
110,000 (39,285) 70,715 70,715
80,000 (4,641) 75,359 75,355
47,000 (23,091 23,923 23,923 -
737,000 11,891 748,891 748,891 -
28,199,610 {285,383) 27,914,227 27,955,309 (41,082)
21,000 20,380 101,380 101,380
208,000 91,809 299,809 299,809
7,500 500 8,000 8,000
250,000 {203,220) 46,780 46,780
175,000 409,842 584,842 584,842
13,891,909 3,025478 16,917,387 17,520,936 (603,549}
400,000 (239,294) 160,706 160,706
92,118 02,118 92,118
928,295 (928,295) - - -
15,973,822 2,237,200 18,211,022 18,814,571 (603,549
67,600 3,286 10,886 70,886
100 {100) - - -
67,700 3,186 70,886 70,886 -
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Variance
Original Final Favorabte
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual {Unfavarable)
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT
Undistributed Expenditures (Continued)
Health Services -
Salaries $ 381,728  § (40,269} § 341459 § 341,459
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 20,000 15,466 35,466 35,466
Supplics and Materials 13,750 (427) 13,323 13,323 -
Total Health Services 415,478 (25,230) 390,248 390,248 -
Speech, OT, PT and Related Services
Salaries 1,128,000 559,063 1,687,063 1,687,063
Purchased Professionat/Educational Services 2,070,000 (245,939 1,824,061 1,824,061
Supplies and Materials 45,000 815 45,815 45,815 -
Total Speech, OT, PT and Related Services 3,243,000 313,93% 3,556,939 3,556,939 -
Other Support Services « Students - Extra.Serv.
Salaries 780,440 219,862 1,660,302 1,000,302
Purchased Professional/Educational Services 607,000 199,156 806,156 806,156 -
Total Other Support Services - Students -
Extra Services 1,387,440 419018 1,806,458 1,806,458 -
Guidance
Salaries of Qther Professional Statf 604,072 {83,306) 520,766 520,766
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 118,669 (38%) 118,280 118,280
Other Salaries 5,000 (5,000)
Purchased Professional/Educational Services 10,000 (9,080) 910 910
Other Purchased Prof. and Technical Services 0,000 (6,257) 3,743 3,743
Supplies and Materials 3,500 5,124 8,624 8,624
Other Objects 2,000 1,276 3,276 3,276 -
Total Guidance 753,241 {97,642) 655,599 655,599 -
Child Study Teams
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 2,010,000 186,411 2,190,411 2,196411
Salaries of Sccretarial and Clerical Assistants 263,000 35,370 298,370 298,370
Other Salaries 400,000 {90,911) 309,089 309,089
Purchased Professional/Educational Services 45,000 20,629 65,629 65,629
Other Purchased Prof. and Technical Services 165,000 {40,269) 124,731 124,731
Residential Costs 4,000 1,060 5,060 5,060
Supplies and Materials 35,000 (129) 34,871 34,871
Other Objects 14,000 (284) 13,716 13716 -
Total Child Study Teams 2,936,000 111,877 3,047 871 3,047 8717 -
Improvement of Instructional Services
Salaries of Supervisors of Instruction 257,506 (76,285) 181,215 169,637 $ 11,578
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 5,200 {5,132) 68 68
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 121,863 (61,64%) 60,222 60,222
Purchased Professional Educational Services 15,000 (14,100) 900 900
Cther Purchased Services 3,000 {3,000)
Supplies and Materials 2,000 (1,411} 589 589
Other Objects 20,000 (1,600) 18,400 18,400 -
Totat Improvement of Instruction Services 424,563 (163,169} 261,394 249 816 11,578
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Variance
Original Final EFavorable
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual {Unfaverable)
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT
Undistributed Expenditures (Continued)
Educational Media Services/School Library
Salaries $ 415400 § (35,366) § 380,034 8§ 380,034
Purchased Professional/Technical Services 2,500 (2,500}
Supplies and Materials 89,200 (30,030} 59,170 59,170 -
Total Educational Media Services/School Library 507,100 (67,856} 439,204 439,204 .
Instructional Staff Training Services
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 2,600 (2,325) 275 275
Purchased Professional Educational Services 5,500 (4,19%) 1,301 1,301
Other Purchased Services 1,500 393 1,893 1,893
Suppties and Materials 2,000 (1,846) 154 154 -
Total Instructional Staff Training Services 11,600 {7,977 3,623 3,623 -
Support Services General Administration
Salaries 620,000 (99,317 520,683 520,683
Legal Services 300,000 0665915 965,915 T42758 % 23157
Audit Fees 104,000 (29,000) 75,000 75,000
Other Purchased Professional Services 5,400 5,400 5,400
Communications/Telephione 343,000 (113,779 229,221 229221
BOE Other Purchased Services 30,000 (13,010 16,990 {0,000 6,990
Other Purchased Services 125,000 (81,359} 43,641 43,641
General Supplies 7,500 23,971 31,471 31,471
BOE In-House Training/Meeting Suppiies 6,000 2,675 8,675 8,675
Judgements Against the School District 50,000 132,651 182,651 182,651
Miscellaneous Expenditures 25,600 (9,531) 15,469 15,46%
BOE Membership Dues and Fees 20,000 - 20,000 20,000 -
Total Support Services General Administration 1,630,500 484,616 2,115,116 1,884,969 230,147
Support Services School Administration
Salaries of Principals/Asst. Principals 1,969,295 {106,368) 1,862,927 1,862,927
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 648,500 (2,869) 645,631 645,631
Other Purchased Services 21,750 (9,994) 11,756 11,756
Supplies and Materials 66,500 15,743 82,243 81,224 1,019
Other Objects 4,600 (3,738} 262 262 -
Total Support Services School Administration 2,710,045 {107,226} 2,602,815 2,601,800 1,019
Central Services
Salaries 480,150 94,698 574,848 574,848
Purchased Technical Services 60,000 12,405 72,405 72,405
Misc. Purchased Services 85,000 56,203 141,203 141,203
Supplies and Materials 26,000 1,734 27,734 27,734
Interest on Lease Purchase Agreements 51,800 (@] 51,799 51,79%
Miscellaneous Expenditures 5,500 (36) 5,464 5464 -
Total Central Services 708,450 165,003 873,453 873,453 -
Admin. info. Tech.
Salaries 265,000 (2,25hH 262,743 262,743
Purchased Professional Services 150,000 1,676 151,676 151,676
Other Purchased Services 60,000 3,046 63,046 63,040
Supplies and Materials 14,000 (345) 13,655 13,655 -
Total Admin, Info. Tech. 489,000 2,120 491,120 491,120 -
{Continued)
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EXHIBIT C-1
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual {Unfavorable}
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT
Undistributed Expenditures (Continued)
Reguired Maintenance for School Facilities
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 5 1,293,000 § (77,426) % 1,215574  § 1,209,628 % 5,946
General Supplies 120,000 107,825 227,825 227825
Other Objects 3,200 (1,37%) 1,821 1,821 -
Total Required Maint. For School Facilities 1,416,200 29,020 1,445,220 1,439,274 5,946
Custodial Services
Salaries 150,000 13,912 203,912 203,912
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 45,000 328 45,328 45,328
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 1,400,000 22,877 1,422,877 1,422,877
Rental of Land and Bldg. Oth. Than Lease Purchase 675,100 (27487 647,613 647,613
Other Purchased Property Services 346,000 (98,488} 247512 247,512
Insurance 340,000 176,706 516,706 516,706
Miscellaneous Purchased Services 300,000 (291,144} 8,856 8,856
General Supplies 8,000 7,686 15,686 11,550 4,136
Energy (Heat and Electricity) 1,149,000 (360,913 788,087 788,087
Energy (Natural Gas) 301,000 11,854 312,854 312,854
Energy (0Oil) 34,000 (243) 33,755 33,755 -
Total Custodial Services 4,788,100 (544,914} 4,243 186 4,230,194 12,992
Care and Upkeep of Grounds
Cleaning, Repair and Maintenance Services 400,000 (26,899) 373,101 373,101 -
Total Care and Upkeep of Grounds 400,000 (26,899 373,101 373,101 -
Security
Salaries 306,727 306,727 306,727
Cleaning, Repair and Mainlenance Services 300,000 (300,000)
General Supplies - 268,873 268,873 56,169 212,704
Total Security 300,000 275,600 575,600 362,896 212,704
Student Transportation Services
Sal. Pupil Trans (Between Home and School) - Reg. 171,700 82,747 254,447 254,447
Management Fee - ESC & CTSA Transp. Prog. 36,000 {36,000)
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services 130,000 1,706 131,706 131,706
Contracted Services (Between Home and
School) - Veadors 14,900,060 [,794,820 16,694,820 17,106,490 (411,670)
Contracted Services {Other Than Between Home
and School) - Vendors 390,000 9,573 399,573 399,573
Contracted Services (Between Home and Schoot) -
Joint Agreements 10,000 (1,430) 8,570 8,570
Contracted Services { Special Education
Students)- Vendors 3,325,000 (2,546,813) 778,187 778,187
Contracted Services { Special Education
Students)- Z5Cs and CTSAs 400,000 181,215 581,215 581,215
Contracted Services ( Aid in Lieu Payments -
Nonpublic Schools 250,000 77,042 327,042 327,042 -
Total Student Transportation Services 19,612,700 (437,140) 19,175,560 19,587,230 (411,670}
(Continued)
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2013

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Final Favorabie
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual {Cnfavorable)
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT
Undistributed Expenditures (Continued)
Allocated Benefits
Regular Programs « Instruction - Employee Benefits
Heaith Benefits $ 3,550,000 - $ 3,550,000 $% 3,550,000 -
TFotal Regular Programs - Instruction - Employee Benefits 3,550,000 - 3,550,000 3,550,000 -
Special Programs - Instruction - Employee Benefits
Health Benefits 2,035,000 - 2,035,000 2,035,000 -
Total Special Programs - Instruction - Employee Benefits 2,035,000 - 2,035,000 2,035,000 -
Other Instructional Programs - Instruction - Employee Benefits
Heaith Benefits 110,500 - 110,500 110,500 -
Tatal Other Instructional Programs - Instruction - Employee Bene 110,500 - 110,560 110,500 -
Attendance and Social Work Services - Employee Benefits
Health Benefits 21,700 - 24,700 21,700 -
Total Attendance and Social Work Services - Employee Benefits 21,700 - 21,700 21,700 -
Health Services - Employee Benefits 110,000 - 110,000 110,000 -
Total Health Services - Employee Benefits 110,000 - 110,000 110,000 -
Other Support Services - Guidance - Employee Benefits 110,000 - 110,000 110,000 -
Total Other Support Services - Guidance - Employee Benefits 110,006 - 110,000 116,000 -
Other Support Services ~ Child Study Teams - Employee Benefits 325,000 - 325,000 325,060 -
Total Other Support Services - Child Study Teams - Employee B 325,000 - 325,000 325,000 -
Improvement of Instruction Services - Employee Benefits 110,000 - 110,000 116,000 -
Total Improvement of Instruction Services - Emplovee Benefits 110,000 - 110,000 110,000 -
Educational Media Services - School Library - Employee Benefits 110,000 - 110,060 116,000 -
Total Educational Media Services - Schoot Library - Employee B 110,000 - 110,000 110,000 -
Student Transportation Services -~ Employee Benefits 119,000 - 110,000 116,060 -
Total Student Transportation Services - Empleyee Benefits 110,000 - 110,000 110,000 -
Total Allocated Benefits 6,592,200 - 6,592,200 6,592,200 -
(Continued)
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

TOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT
Undistributed Expenditures {Continued)
Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits
Group Insurance
Social Security Contributions
Other Retirement Contribution-Regular
Other Retirement Contribution-Deferred PERS Payment
Unemployment Compensation
Workmen's Compensation
Health Benefits
Tuition Reimbursement
Other Emnployee Benefits

Total Unallocated Benefits

On Behalf Payments (Non-Budgeted)
TPAF Pension Contribition
TPAF Non Contributory insurance
TPAF Post Retirement Medical Contribution
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contribution

Total On-Behalf Paymenis
Total Undistributed Expenditures
Total - Current Expenditures
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Eguipment
Undistributed Expenditures
Required Maintenance for Scheol Facilities

School Buses - Regular
Non-Instructional Services

Total Equipment

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Other Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Objects

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Tatal Capital Outlay
Transfer of Funds to Charter Schools

Tetal Expenditures - General Fund

EXHIBIT (-1

Variance
Qriginal Final Favorable
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual (Unfaverable}
25000 % {24,622) 378 378
725,000 68,802 793,802 793,802
649,139 {52,783) 596,356 596,356
30,000 {30,000) -
560,000 (227,323) 332,677 310,115 22,562
600,000 261,951 861,95t 861,951
5,175,000 666,858 5,841,858 5,841,858
35,000 14,879 49,879 49,879
975,000 (536,994) 438,006 338,006 100,000
8,774,139 140,768 8,914,907 8,792,345 122,562
1,991,935 (1,591,0935)
104,803 (104,803)
2,370,882 (2,370,882)
- - - 2,115,181 (2,115,180
- - - 6,582,801 (6,582,801)
73,141,278 2,704,254 75,845,532 82,846,604 (7,001,072)
101,340,888 2418871 103,759,759 110,801,913 (7,042,154)
30,000 (26,069) 3,931 3,931
81,031 81,031 81,031
18,000 (14,431) 3,569 3,569 -
48,000 40,53} 88,531 88,531 -
40,310 40,310 38,629 1,681
- 414 414 414 -
- 40,724 40,724 39,043 1,681
48,000 81,255 129,255 127,574 1,681
- 15,888 15,888 15,888 -
101,388 888 2,516,014 103,904,902 110,945,375 (7,040.473)
{Continued)
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EXHIBIT C-1
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2013

Variance
Original Final Favorabfe
Budyget Adjustments Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
Excess (Deficiency)} of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ (2,890,000 § (2444649 § (5,334,649} $ (5,800,076) § (465,427)
Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Operating Transfers In - 1,206,600 1,200,000 1,200,000 -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 1,200,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (2,890,000) (1,244,649) (4,134,649) (4,600,076} (465,427)
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 6,767,712 - 6,761,112 6,167,712 -
Fund Balances, End of Year $ 3877712 § (1,244640) § 2633063 § 2,167,636 3 (465,427

Recapituiation of Fund Balance:

Restricted
Excess Surplus, Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures $ 698,252
Assigned
Year End Encumbrances 326,488
Unassigned 1,142,856
Reconciliation to Governmestal Funds Statements (GAAP): 2,167,636
Less: State Aid Not Recognized on GAAP Basis (5,308,617
Fund Balance Per Governmental Funds (GAAP) $ {3,140,981)
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EXHIBIT C-1a
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATEON
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND - EDUCATION JOBS FUND PROGRAM
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Variance
Final to Actual
Original Final Favorable/
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES
Federal Sources
Educationt Jobs Fund - $ 8940 § 8940 § 8,940 -
Total Revenues . 8,940 8,940 8,940 -
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES

Undistributed Expenditures -
Speech, OT, PT and Related Services

Salaries - 8,940 8,940 8,940 -
Total Undistributed Expenditures - 8,940 8,940 8,940 -

Total Expenditures - 8,940 8,940 8,940 -
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures % - $ - $ - 3 - 5 -
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REYENUES
State Sources
Federal Sources

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Instrsction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries
Purchased Professionaf and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services
Tuition
General Supplies
Textbooks
Other Objects

Total [nstruction

Support Services

Salaries of Supervisors of [nstruction
Salaries of Program Directors

Salaries of Other Professional Staff

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Other Salaries

Personal Services Employee-Benefits
Purchased Professional and Techrica! Services
Purchased Prof./Ed. Serv.

Other Purchased Services

Transportation

Supplies and Materiais

Total Support Services

Facilities and Acquisition Construction Sves.
Instructional Equipment
Non Instructional Equipment
Total Facilitics and Acquisition Construction Svcs.

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenucs
Qver (Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE, 39, 2013

EXHIBIT C-2

Original Final Variance
Budpet Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual
5 15217374 3 7,349,931 § 22567305 20,383,135 (2,184,170)
13,800,000 15,160,820 28,960,820 22,70],286 (6,259,534)
29,017,374 22,510,751 51,528,125 43,084,424 (8,443,704)
11,007,374 (6,051,513) 4,955,861 2,192,542 2,763,319
400,000 {86,285) 313,715 310,257 3.458
200,000 372,458 572,458 389,134 183,324
10,600 452,318 462,318 238,096 174,222
3,000,000 (1,816,007 1,183,903 1,183,903

1,500,000 1,627,010 3,127,010 2,344,185 782,825
803,000 234,249 1,037,249 1,018,292 13,957

- 7,570 7,570 3,220 4,350
16,920,374 {5,260,290) 11,660,084 7,729,629 3,930,455
104,500 1,093,351 1,197,351 92,567 1,104,384
97,198 97,198 597,206 {500,008)

50,600 160,388 213,388 147,117 63,271
20,000 196,237 216,237 184,590 31,247
100,000 54,217 154,217 113,384 40,833
106,500 829,401 929,401 599,790 329,605
11,697,000 6,636,807 18,333,807 16,509,531 1,424,276
16,114,635 16,114,635 14,605,308 1,509,327

26,000 250,990 276,990 133,605 143,385

500,000 500,000 500,000

- 652,436 652 436 407,444 244 992
12,697,000 26,585,660 38,682,660 34,291,348 4,391,312
- 1,180,110 1,180,110 1,058,25% 121,859

- 5,271 3,271 5,193 78

- L,18538I 1,185,381 1,063,444 121,937
29,017,374 22,510,751 51,528,125 43,084,421 8,443,704

3 - 5 - 5 - - -
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EXHIBIT C-3

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration of the governmental fund
types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Funds are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records
are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The following presents a reconciliation of the General and Special Revenue Funds from the budgetary basis of accounting
as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund and Special Revenue Fund to the GAAP basis of
accounting as presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds,

Special
Generzl Revenue
Fund Fund
Sources/Inflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) revenue from the
budgetary comparison schedule (Exhibits C-1 and C-2) $ 105,145,299 $ 43,084,421
Difference - Budget to GAAP
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expendilures, and the
related revenue is recognized,
Encumbrances, June 30, 2013 (1,581,290)
Encumbrances, June 30, 2012 682,182
State Aid recognized for budgetary purposes, not recognized
for GAAP staternents (2012/13 State Aid) (5,308,617} (228,210)
State Aid recognized for GAAP purposes, not recognized
for budgetary statements (2011/2012 State Aid) 5,919,816 -
Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Furd Balances -
Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) $ 105,756,498 $§ 41,957,103
Uses/Outflows of Resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) total expenditures from the
budgetary comparison schedute (Exhibits C-1 and C-2) $ 110,945375 & 43,084,421
Differences - Budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but not
received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes
Encumbrances, June 30, 2013 (1,581,290)
Encumbrances, June 30, 2012 - 682,182
Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds (Exhibit B-2) $ 110945375 § 42,185,313
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SCHOOL LEVEL SCHEDULES
EXHIBITS D-1, D-2 AND D-3

NOT APPLICABLE




SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
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EXPENDITURES
[nstruction
Salaries of Teachers
Other Salaries for Instruction
General Supplies

Total [nstruction

Support Services
Salarfes of Supervisors of Instruction
Salaries of Program Directors
Salaries of Other Professional Siaff
Salaries of Seeretarial and Clerical Assts.
Other Sataries
Personal Services - Employee Benefits
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Trangportation
Other Purchased Professional Services
Supplies and Materials

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

LAKEWOQOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNP
PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT E-2

Original Budget Final Variance
Budget Transfers Budget Actual Final to Actual
$ 1,807,374 H {771,950) § 1,035,424 $ 1,035,424
400,000 (102,269 297,131 297,731
110,000 71,314 181,514 181314 -
2317374 (802,505) 1,514,469 1,514,469 -
104,000 (11,033) 92,567 92,967
- 4,231 4,231 4,231
50,000 5,899 55,899 55,899
20,000 45,027 63,027 65,027
100,000 (81,821} 18,179 18,179
100,000 513,630 513,630
43,700 43,700 43,700
- 500,000 500,000
26,000 (12,9613 13,039 13,039
- 11,553 11,553 11,553 -
400,000 4,595 1,318,225 1,318,225 -
$ 2,717,374 3 {798,310) §$ 2,832,694 $ 2,832,694 3 -
Totai Revised 2012-13 Preschool Education Aid Allocation 5 2,317,374
Actual ECPA/PEA Carryover (June 30,2012) 518,847
Total Preschool Education Aid Funds Avaitable for 2012-13 Budget 2,836,221
Less: 2012-13 Budgeted Preschool Education Ald (Including Prior Year Carryover) (2,832.690)
Available and Unbudgeted Preskool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2013 3,527
Add: June 30, 2013 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid -
2012-13 Carryover - Preschool Education Aid Programs 3 3,527
2012-13 Preschool Education Aid Carrvover Budgeted in 2013-14 for Preschool Programs $ -
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Issue/Project Title

High School HVAC Replacement

High Scheol Hot Water Heater Replacement
Middle School Roof Project

Board Office Project

Middle School Window Replacement

Middle School Exhaust Replacement

Unallocated

EXHIBIT F-1

LAKEWOODR BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Unexpended
Expenditures to Date Balance,

Appropriation Prior Years Current Year  June 36, 2013

$ 485,625 $ 33,174 % 452,451

46,677 46,677

2,282,999 2,265,939 17,060

1,753,000 66,750 1,686,250

564,400 564,400

254,116 254,116

358,183 - - 358,183

$ 5,745,000 § - $ 2365863 % 3,379,137
Recapitulation of Fund Balance:

Year End Encumbrances $ 829,807

Available for Capital Projects 2,549,330

Total Fund Balance - Restricted
for Capital Projects b 3,379,137
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EXHIBIT ¥-2

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Lease Purchase Proceeds $ 5,745,000

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 5,745,000

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 168,424
Construction Services 2,197,439
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 2,365,863
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under) Expenditures 3,379,137

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year -

Fund Balance - End of Year $ 3,379,137
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EXHIBIT F-2a

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
2013 LEASE PURCHASE - HIGH SCHOOL HVAC REPLACEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revised
Authorized
Prioyr Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Lease Purchase Proceeds - $ 485625 $ 485,625 % 485,625
Total Revetiues - 485,625 485,025 485,625

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 33,174 33,174 40,000
Construction Services - - - 445,625

Total Expenditures - 33,174 33,174 485,625

Excess {Deficiency) or Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 5 - 3 452,451 % 452,451 % -

Additional Project Information:

Project Number N/A
Grant Date N/A
Lease Purchase Issue Date 6/28/2013
Lease Purchase Authorized 485,625
Lease Purchase Issued 485,625
Original Authorized Cost 485,625
Adjustment -
Revised Authorized Cost 485,625

Percentage Increase Over Criginal

Authorized Cost -
Percentage Completion 7%
Original Target Completion Date 2013/2014
Revised Target Completion Date 2013/2014

73




LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT F-2b

SCHEPULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS

2013 LEASE PURCHASE - HIGH SCHOOL HOT WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Lease Purchase Proceeds

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) or Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Additionat Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Lease Purchase Issue Datc
Lease Purchase Authorized
Lease Purchase Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Adjustment
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
- b 46,677 § 46,677 § 46,677
- 46,677 46,677 46,677
5,500
- - - 41,177
- - - 46,677
$ - $ 46,677 % 46,677 $ -
N/A
N/A
/282013
46,677
46,677
46,677
46,677
0%
2013/2014
201372014
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LAKEWOOD BCGARD OF EDUCATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT F-2¢

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS

2013 LEASE PURCHASE - MIDDLE SCHOOL ROOF PROJECT

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Lease Purchase Proceeds

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Construction Services

Total Expenditures

Excess {Deficiency) or Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Lease Purchase Issue Date
i.ease Purchase Authorized
Lease Purchase Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Adjustment
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2013

Revised
Authorized
- $ 2282999 % 2,282,999 § 27282999
- 2,282,999 2,282,999 2,282,99%
68,500 68,500 68,500
- 2,197,439 2,197,439 2,214,499
- 2,265,939 2,265,939 2,282,999
$ “ 3 17,060 § 17,060 § -
N/A
N/A
6/28/2013
2,282,999
2,282,999
2,282,999
2,282,999
99%
201372014
20132014
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EXHIBIT F-2d

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
2013 LEASE PURCHASE - BOARD OFFICE PROJECT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Lease Purchase Proceeds M $ 1,753,000 $ 1,753,000 § §,753,000
Total Revenues - 1,753,000 1,753,000 [,753,000
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 66,750 66,750 103,000
Construction Services - - - 1,650,000
Total Expenditures - 66,750 66,750 1,753,000

Excess (Deficiency) or Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

=@
]

$ 1,686,230 § 1,686,250 § -

Additional Project Information:

Project Number N/A
Grant Date N/A
Lease Purchase Issue Date 6/28/12013
Lease Purchase Authosized 1,753,000
Lease Purchase lssued 1,753,000
Original Authorized Cost 1,753,000
Adjustment -
Revised Authorized Cost 1,753,000

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost -

Percentage Completion 4%
Original Target Completion Date 2013/2014
Revised Target Completion Date 201312014
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EXHIBIT F-2¢

LAKEWQOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
2613 LEASE PURCHASE - MIDDLE SCHOOL WINDOW REPLACEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenaes and Other Financing Sources
Lease Purchase Proceeds - 3 564,400 % 564,400 $§ 564,400
Total Revenues N 564,400 564,400 564,400
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 20,000
Construction Services - - - 544,400
Total Expenditures - - - 564,400

Excess (Deficiency) or Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ - b 564,400 § 564,400 §$ -

Additionai Project Information:

Project Number N/A
Grant Date N/A
Lease Purchase Issue Date 6/28/2013
Lease Purchase Authorized 564,400
Lease Purchase Issued 564,400
Original Authorized Cost 364,400
Adjustment -
Revised Authorized Cost 564,400

Percentage Increase Over Original
Authorized Cost -

Percentage Completion 0%
Original Target Completion Date 201372014
Revised Target Completion Date 201372014
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EXHIBIT F-21

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
2013 LEASE PURCHASE - MIDDLE SCHOOL EXHAUST REPLACEMENT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Lease Purchase Proceeds - 3 254,116 § 254,116 § 254,116
Total Revenues - 254,186 254,116 254,116
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 12,000
Construction Services - - - 242116
Total Expenditures - - - 254,116
Excess (Deficiency) or Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ - $ 254,116 % 254,116 §$

Additienal Project Information:

Project Number N/A
Grant Date N/A
Lease Purchase Issue Date 6/28/2013
Lease Purchase Authorized 254,116
Lease Purchase Issued 254,116
Original Authorized Cost 254,116
Adjustment -
Revised Authorized Cost 254,116

Percentage Increase Over Original

Authorized Cost -
Percentage Completion 0%
Original Target Completion Date 201372014
Revised Target Completion Date 2013/2014
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EXHIBIT F-2g

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -
BUDGETARY BASIS
2013 LEASE PURCHASE - UNALLOCATED
FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing Sources
1.ease Purchase Proceeds - 3 358,183 % 358,183 % 358,183
Total Revenues - 358,183 358,183 358,183
Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 20,000
Construction Services - - - 338,183
Total Expenditurcs - - - 358,183
Excess {Deficiency) or Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures $ - 3 358,183 % 358,183 § -

Additional Project Information:

Project Number N/A
Grant Date N/A
Lease Purchase Issue Date 6/28/2013
Lease Purchase Authorized 358,183
Lease Purchase Issued 358,183
Original Authorized Cost ‘358,183
Adjustment -
Revised Authorized Cost 358,183

Percentage Increase Over Original

Authorized Cost -
Percentage Completion 0%
Original Target Completion Date 2013/2014
Revised Target Completion Date 2013/2014
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 39, 2013

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE

COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE

g0

EXHIBIT G-1

EXEIBIT G-2

EXHIBIT G-3




FIDUCIARY FUNDS




LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF AGENCY NET POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due from Other Fund

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Due te Other Funds
Summer Payment Plan Deposits
Flexible Spending Plan Deposits
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings
Accrued Salaries and Wages

Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

AS OF JUNE 30, 2013
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EXHIBIT H-1

Agency
Student
Activity Pavyroll Total

$ 77,183 $ 1,187,358 § 1,264,541
- 1,035,919 1,035,919
b 77,183 % 2223277 5 2.300,460
$ 56,813 % 56,813
1,279,710 1,279,710
5,598 5,598
880,675 880,675
481 481
3 77,183 - 77,183
b 77,183 $§ 2223277 $§ 2,300,460




EXHIBIT H-2

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE.

FINANCTAL STATEMENT 1S PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-&.
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EXHIBIT H-3

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Balance Cash Cash Balance,
School July 1, 2012 Receipts Disbursemenis June 30,2813
ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS
Oak Street School $ 482 $ 482
JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOLS
Lakewood Middle School 3,506 % 8,487 § 8,002 3,991
HIGH SCHOOL
Lakewood High School 67,275 62,402 62,779 66,898
Total All Schools 71,263 70,889 70,781 71,371
ATHLETIC ACCOUNT
Due to Student Groups 500 83,409 78,097 5,812
Due to Other Funds 33,905 - 33,905 -
Total Athletics 34,405 83,409 112,002 5,812
Total $ 105,668 § 154,298 § 182,783 % 77,183
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PAYROLL AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT H-4

Balance, Balance,
July 1, Cash Cash June 30,
2012 Receipts Disbursements 20613
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents § 1,663,048 & 62,471,814 § 62,947,504 § 1,187,338
Total Assets $ 1,663,048 $ 62471,814 § 62,947,504 $ 1,187,358
LIABILITIES
Due to Other Funds
Due Unemployment Compensation Trust h) 56,813 $ 56,813
Due (from) to General Fund 58,520 § 560,602 & 1,655,041 (1,035,919
Accrued Salaries and Wages 1 19,830,382 19,829,902 481
Summer Payment Plan Deposits 1,177,753 1,271,115 1,169,158 1,279,710
Flexibie Spending Account Deposits 7,174 38,326 39,902 5,598
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings 362,787 40,771,389 40,253,501 880,675
§ 1,663,048 % 062,471,814 § 62,947,504 § 1,187,358
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEBT SERVICE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT I-3

Original Budget Final Variance with
Budget Transfers Budget Actunal Final Budget
REVENULS:
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy $ 1,615,847 $ 1,615,847 $ 16153847
State Sources
Debt Service Aid - Type II 21,665 . 21,665 21,665 .
Total Revenues 1,637,512 - 1,637,512 1,637,512 -
EXPENDITURES:
Regular Debt Service:
Commissioner Approved Lease Purchase Principat 626,577 626,577 $ 626,577
Commissioner Approved Lease Purchase Interest 117,600 117,600 117,600
Interest on Debt 39,636 39,636 39,636
Redemption of Principal 853,742 853,742 853,740 2
Total Regular Debt Service 1,637,555 - 1,637,555 893,376 744,179
Total Expenditures 1,637,555 - 1,637,555 893,376 744,179
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures (43) - (43) 744,136 744,179
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 43 43 43 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ - $ - $ - § 744,179 $ 744,179
Recapitulation of Fund Balance:
Designated for Subsequent Year's Expenditures $ -
Available for Debt Service Expenditures 744,179
$ 744179
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Lakewood Board of Education's comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's

overall financial health.
Contents
Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand

how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed

over time.
Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the govern-
ment's most significant local revenue source, the property tax. '

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the afforda-
bility of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the
government's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the government's finan-
cial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the government's financial report

relates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs.

Exhibits

J-1to J-5

J-6 to -9

J-10to J-13

J-14 and J-15

J-16 t0 J-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.




63

LICYOLS § 630°91%°01 § TO9COI'EL § 1L9EE6 L 8 €80°I8CT 8 (c3s’osy'e) ¢ THTHRLT  § L55TRIT  § [80°S0ET  § 104908°1
(EP¥'8E£8°01) (L8L1ei's) 88€°861°1 (19z9L7) {0gr00£"9} Zizorre) (Z€9'eL1"S) {LES'1ETE) (€625t 7) (967'2¢9°2)
IIEETLY 37 St T - 000°0LT - z - 1LF95T
PEEIPTT $ CEQ°LECTT % 69160611 § 08T°969°01 § £91°Tr88 § PE9eSEL 8 PIE'E06'Y  § ZE0'POSE  § QLECSL'Y  § 98F'306°E
0SE LY T $ 7981961 § STE9S9'T § 6966ECT S Y6ETT6 $ 696655 £ [l § VIEEEs $ QUL § BEF TG
SLTSLO'T 9PSEES] £90°88T°1 £PT0LS B08°LES LY1'EST 60E'9TY SLET1E SF1°LEL
LS0°LOE $ SI8LTY $ 35t 89 S 9ZL°69E S 995°98¢ $ 778'98¢ § sl Fac $ SOT'LST $ 98°50Z $ 06T°L81
L36TETY  $ LTLUPSHE % LY § TOL'E699 S 68T°L19°1 % (Zssozl'y) ¢ LETROET & IvC66ST 8 0769811 § £97°265
(1ZL€16°11) (£££°559°¢) (6£9°68) (Ps8°2E9°E) {837°'8£8°9) (FOE'E9E11) (Z€9°€i1s) OPLLYSE) (0L3'19€°E) (0F'68€c)
9Ie Ty £ 33 z 000°04LT 1L'98E
[ e AT LI0011°Z1 $ 11L°9¢5°1T & $65°9ZE°01 S LLS'SEHR § TITLEY % 6OL18Y'9  § L86'9¥TS  $ 06L'8PS'T  $ 961°1ZL°¢
€107 Z102 1102 g10% 6002 $00Z L00T 5007 500T F00Z

I-r LI9IHX3

(BULHNODID J0 §150G JoRi208)
(panpoeuny)

SUVAA TVOSII NEL IS5V
ININOIWOD AR NOLLISOd LEN
NOILYMIIF 40 Td¥0d GOOMIAV

BORISOJ 13N 0IRSI [BI0],
paoLnsaary
paivmsay
stessy reinde;) u Jusumsaan] 10N
P -RIDS]

OISO BN SPNIANOY 2dA] -ssaursng [B10],
PRYOLASIIU)
51058y Ende)) m jusunseAl] BN
sananoy adA ] -ssawsng

HOTSO JAN SPHNIALOY [PIUSLTLGADL) IO,
PEIOLNSERIL)
paloIsay
sya8sYy @R Ul JUSUBSIAN] JaN]
SOUIALOY [EIUSURLIDAOL)



06

(6ETELTTE) S (ov6'650'88) §  (BF8re’z6) §  (E€L6'S¥P96) § (esc°0£826) §  (IsSpil68) § (goz'str'ss) ¢ {oov'ozrie)  § (9L6'0£169) & (pzo'LoL’L8) § asuadNg 18N SPIA-IOMISIC [B10L
P8LTB0L £30°40% 3PSCIT T£5°122 630758 9Z0'ES T6L B (sz'zon) £SRLLI TET L] senIAnDY add [ -ssauisng
{cz0'z88'T6) § (szo'eoc's8) & (SEO'19S'T6) §  (p09'L99'06) 8 (zeg'slees) §  (es'esi'es) § (ooor25c8)  § (S1€81€%2L) ¢ (6z8'7i€69)  § (9c8'chs'28)  § SHIHALDY [RIESTUUISAALY
AR TdxT) 39N
POT I58SY  § P80 8 OLIS66'FF  § LTTCCESE § EDETRE § 9sr'IE6'Tr  § SECTIOCE & [898FTSE § SZLTIY'TL [3 LIT'SE09 B sanuanay weaBold PIsIC [BOL
9LT6L6 € LFEE99°E T8 5%t BET B0F T PG BLF L £LI2801 TE9TE0 E ¥ 98T C18036% SI0SL6'T sanusagy wesSord SeRIARYY edA L ssauIsny 10T
STHLL SuOUNGIIUC) P SREID [Ede)
165728 THE0T'E 092" 7L8T 6F9°L9'T YETEIY'T 98£'251'7 IPLESH'T 186°9¥8'1 DLL516°1 $8L'768°1 SUORRQLILOD) Pue sweIn) Sugaiado
- ¥LgY L8 LSE'0TL GLE'GEE L% rax PIT'EST $68'807 ITF'957 TLT'OLT Tootpg Anmurue)
£ £EL'LIL T80°TST §¥L'e91 SLLOLY 897'191 £TELEL orz'orl wesBod Aeuorey
STL9T 1£2765F [£Z08F 685881 LYLETS FSE1Z$ PrgLe 0zy'sr9 S0E'159 £89'799 a2lAteg poo,]

$201ALeg 10] SaBmy)
saanay 2dA] -ssemsng

BI0'T6819 PTIBIF ES BILIFS 1Y 686 970°¢Y YIUTTTE £ BFL6E TOLBLELE TS 167 1FFEL 1§T°650°€ $SANURATY WERIB0I] SSRINRIY [EIURLIWSAOD) TRI0L
COBATY {96°081 36L°6LS BITLE 819°L 129°0C 9168 L10T STOTNMIUIO]) PUE SR fR1de])
101'6F1°19 VRS E6T ST 9TELOETY 9916912y €EL0S0°TE SECEFI6E SI1'8E5'TE £90'CE1'TE ELL'OVE'ST RL0°LEET SLOUNLILO]) Pue SR Fuieiad()
T90°E6 |3 0r0'sTl $ TES'TS H 520°96 $ ELYVYL E 06L'16 g €160 E FE'TEL 3 971'€6 $ 31 K44]1 $ $90LAIRE 103 S9BIRY)

SOUALDY [BIUSLILIBACE)
$IBUBANY MIEITol1g

CECPT08ST  § LIEPPTSRT § LE6SEFELE] S DO IOEZFT  § SSL1TFEEL § LOUO90TET  § £099E0 1ZL L3TEOSTIL Z0L6S55TI0T § 16L°708°E6 & sasuadxg IASI 0L,
TGHOST'E POLTIE'E EFROFT'E L09'981'E ESTEVEE LEOGLIE P8Z38°T SYFT96'T LE6T08T FOLGELT 2SUSANE SaNIAIOY ad A1 -5seuisng [BI0L
ST [T 580 60T T192LE [ YITLLE [ 08¥'95T 09T EER FET¥EF 100Yg AyuUmLWoy
L80°T 08F'851 510'981 PLL'EOT $L5°141 £76'651 TTYEH] £9LFET uresBozd Aot
L8T0ST'E 108°29€'€ 0L9"6Z0°1 915'05L'T 108°E89°T 690°8¥S'T TE6'E9ET TO'TYS'T SLI'TTE'T EPSOFT'T 012§ POO
$anIaTey odA ] -ssousng
TFOFLLFET €597 (841 PELZOLFEL €60 TILBEL 906'LL0°0ET 076°GE6°8E] AN P8 P09 601 SPL9SLRE LTOEO0TT6 S25USHNT SANIANOY [EIRTIWEACT [RIOL
[y T60 169 69L9LS 990'5 15 ¥8L°999 $OZ €54 $LT199 [ BLOT8Y ¥i0'0ZL uoypzwICwy pue toyeleIde(y persolEury
69F'EST swssY [eade)) jo esodsiqy uo ssog pajesafeur)
#6561 PRETCTT saInipuadxy pue senuaasy Areledpng o1 jusunsnipy
LS LPE19 228'Lpl 606'8€7 TEL91E LIT96E £19°5¢ SOT'FO0F BSHISE SLEGGY 1qa(Y U2 18107 1o 182AUL
£8L°T6T ¥88'921 31909 R16°€51 9%6'¥T1 626'E51 L8T091 S100Ug Ersds
SSHPSYTI LLLTISLT ££0'801°91 T6L'050°61 $68°909°L1 666'164°SL LO6OLT'YT Styauag PIFEIC| UL
T99°91£°0T GOV PRT'RI ¥88'2Z0'91 F6L'095°91 T69'98£°S1 9TEEPEY] 098°190°C1 loz'1€9° 11 9857658 TIEG198 gonzHodsURLE [Idng
$86°9BL'D 0£6'162°9 09£°L0%'L FS5 66’9 66T'E66'9 £99°€61°9 60L°600°9 99E°7E6'S £5E°6Y9°S SHFLE'S SUPUSURIY PUE SUONRIGAN) 1R
OTBS9L' P5L6E0' SVIALSE [PUUE]Y
T6L'9OL'E €51 EE0'y 996'CHF'E LYL'LOL'E L69°889°C I1$6°5E8'E LTELE £91°090°€ £6£°080°E 116'68T'€ SABIALSG BALBNSTUTAPY |00YO
90£'691°T 91T 105°986'1 688°16T'C LYTTHFT STEESST 1EE°T6E'€ 6T8'ETST 109'TL9°T 0L6'855°E SANAIAG AAnENSTIDY [RIBEA0
ESESTLOP POVROGTY SLETIO6E TLO'SLE'OY 90L8EYTE SI0PSSPE 1£8°18T°6C 0$6°898°97 9R'LIGTT 9I0LLE'6] S9DIAI3G PRIZTY UOHINASU 2 FUSpNIS
LEE'SEL'SE STLLEE'ST LI ILTSH LIZT'E99'01 £68°E58°01 091'566'8 S1T'908"L TeL'ies's GORML
15301ANaS Woddng
686'801 vLI'SL 00181 BLY00F 0TS €81 006'081 000111 suonesadgysumIfosd 99105 AIMWIo])
SEF'S61'T SPE'09T'] 898'606 LER'EYS FLL'SER LTET6S £38°39L L89'E5 096'19L PIPEES SORIYNY/SAUIALIY pasosucds [ooyes
£1£°790°9 1ETLPRY 1S6'YL'E 689°625'T LE0'9FE'T 96§°TEET 16072601 £59'1#6 £00'165 TI6°LEL uoyonIISU[ TEioadg S
FOL'9PS'0g 698°L6L'ST 6786779 056'959'S SLE'SLY'9 985°IZ1'8 666'3¥1°8 009'4L9'9 OLOFROD 8SYETEL wonsonpy [Ioadg
SEO'BOSPE § PrOPISIE § LT6'EI9T  § 668'856'9T 8 LLT6ILST § OF8IIPSST 8 LA E 2T I L1£'L01°sZ 3 SEEI08'ET 3 PEP00PE § Emiey
uoHINISU]
SBIATDY [BIUSIILIZADSY
sesuadxy
£10T T10Z 1102 D10Z 5007 8007 LOGT 900¢ 00T FOOT

Bugunenos o sispg o)
{papueur])
SHVEA TYDSIA NAL 1SY]
NOLEISOd LIN NE STONYHD
NOLLVYONQE 10 Cd¥0d AO0OMTAV']
T LIEIHXH




06 11L1 8 (czo09sy 8 LF568L°9 8 066 1685 3 8EEISHT 3 TIOR0FT § (TiTeob) $ EIE 66T $ 6LE B6L FLEOPE] B
(ZE0'68) LESHOE CLR0Y LISSIE ¥16 §9C 1Z9°81L CLTLLT {0107¢L D) AN [T
(sTs'zer’r) 8 (oor'sos'y  § TEL08E'9 g £IF'5L0'S 5 Fer'eg1'y $ 102°681'7 g (srs'oLy) $ AAL 3 959PEE BEF'SSTT 3
6LTIOFLE § IC667 98 % FEUREIGE S £96LL8 101 161°€82°001 S ELLTS 16 3 966 1£6P8  § El66lLLL § SE CE6 69 Borgoles  §
Oi8Z6t 1 yELT 102061 SY6'EE ST 081 $6L76G1 18¥°87 {GZLol) LTS 83
(000002 1) BST°E6 {0957 ¥5)
{Zos'D)
o¥T’101 TE6'TH 961'8L1 99T°THL STESII
LEB'ITE FO¥'s

P31'E ¥$L'1 008°1 vlo't [134 1£0°5T 18'37 991°91 997'91 €816

£60'659'38 6O L6Y'98 LTY 1686 LIQFFL IO S9£T0T°001 BLLOLE'IS SICE06'PS P9 OEL'LL S8H°606'69 SIE660'68
O0DOT 1 (851°€6) 000°056 0797949 TR

100°9L0°9

9L§'L61 L186TS OE'TEE LES'ITE 8T S6¢ GLFRLET] ZEG'B8E L I0F 806'192 TETE8Y

89T 0g0's 00+'TT SO8'TH TP01 09T'8LL £9€'6LT 1£2'922 0TOPoT PRI

$TT81 19¥'5L 6V8SL $90'98 £e9'8 TET6L BLLLL $L8'SL 6LE'0L

SLEVLETT £8F'ERL'YT SLT'REO'ST 019'L8Y'8T POETILLE TLEERGLT 869°LbE'21 SETGOL'ST LE8°08T'9] 9L0°195°6E
LreS19] FLO'LO® TE5'TE6'] SLO'THT'1 SrL0sT 168521 L28€°22T'] LLEE0E'T 989°LEE'] OLL'ESE']
0IzTPEgoL 8 POO'BETOL 8 $T9EREIL $ §TO'E6E 1L § CEVLEC6Y 8 ETSTTLYS 8 SKL'PSTTY 8 285 165°98 3 SSO°818'TS 0855y S

€107 Ti07 1107 HH 600T BOOT LO0T 5007 C00¢ ¥00Z.
{Bupguneone o siseq jonsoms)
{psupaeup)
SUVEA TYIS1d NEL LSV
NOLLISC LN NI SEONYHD

-F LIGIHXE

NOLLYOMAA 10 qEv 08 GOOMEAVT

PSIA ROL

samIARoY adA 1 -ssouisng
SINWMOIY EIUSIRLFAGH
uose g 1oN ur sBuky)

SPLAA-LASIT [BI0L
santansy ad4] -ssasng [E10]

SIajSUBLL,
SRSSY [Ede]) Jo [esodsyT vo sso]
SUBHNGIILC)
SUOU] SNOTE[FOST
sBurureg 182103y pardsany)
Sanyy sdiy-ssounng

SIRIANDY [EWRIIWISACE) [BI0],

SIajsuel],
sissy [erde]) Jo o[eg wog uren

swiy Ewedg

WO STIOSTR]|SST

sEUBE 15218)U] PAISLGSIIUL]

PROLUSSY - PIV SIS PUB BIRP3

pansAILy) - PIy SIS PUR [B1P]

SVIAIF 1GI(] 10F PAAIT X,

1A ‘sesoding [eIauan) 10§ pawa soxe) Apedord
SINANIY [EIUIILIDAOL)
UOHISOJ 19N UT SIBUEY) S2YI() PUE SANUIANY |EIFFG



76

501°668°¢ £ 3 BEL'OTI'T (y9¢°897)  § {6Z1°L¥T) (zzo'scr) (szL'8ls) (8TL°80¢) (£6281¢€) (c02781¢)
{orsen (9957392) {0€1°L¥T) (Z70'EEr) (8ZL'81€) (82L'80€) (P5L°81€) (902°81¢€)
E0L9TIT
SILETIY £ 5 2 z 13 1 i 1
£62°91
(186°0F17¢) 068'LF8 3 ¥80°$8Z°E PO6°CHTE S LTT181 $59°¢1 (res T (£99'15€) 657205 105°8€T°1
(1ZL7°¢91°F) (£67°680'E) SLR'GL] TFEELT [T (£99°15€) <8I $9T'€99
88°9ZE LEFZR6'T 60T801°E ZYUET  $ LTTIST 5.8 9ET'SLS
757269 TEL'YSE $ $59°T1
£10T [ 1107 0102 600T 8007 L00T 9007 S00Z ¥00T

¢ LISTHXE

(Bunun02op f0 150G [oRdo0D palfipou)

(paupneuny)
SUVAA T¥ISIA NAL 18VT
SANO TVINTANEZAQD - SAINVIVE GNNA

NOLLVINAA JO GEVOE dOOMAN YT

SPUTL] [EUIANLIA0D) LR [[¥ FIOL

poudissenn)
pausissy
paroLnsey
s1qepU2dsuoN
SPUR,] [ENDULIIACL 10U 1Y

puny [BI2U3L) [EIO],

paudisseuny

paudissy

panLgsey
Pum,] [RISUBD)



“Aepne [ended ssof somurpuadxe [e103 are samypusdxs endesuoy

%51°0 %040 %6¥L %96°0 %9071 %490°1 %811 %871 %St'1 %91 samyipuadxy (endesuon
o ofmuscing » 98 2014195 19201

(F18°¢6) $ (I6T°LEFZ) § oW190°C & EOL'EL0E  § [0L498T § 8ST°9s9'1 & (288%66€'1) § (698FP8)  § {09C'¢8L) $  Pr960E $ saoure(eg] puag v a3ueyD 1aN]
000'SF5'9 - (501°221) (8v9°LL) (£pSTes) (#9501} RER'I6LT 095" For {961'%5T) - (ses1} s301n0g BUraUEUL] BIRQ [WOL
000°00T T {851°c6) PP OEE 095 ¥oF - sippsueL], Sunerdg

Anqery 4rad Jo yewiedsy
penss| 3q9¢] w31 -Juo

{16810 sanuassy AepRSpng o) usnosnfpy

[CXTA {F8e'cez'D) somympuadxy Aradpag o3 uounsafpy

L89°C 96Ty 44149 000 sjqede ] STUNOOY JO LODR[[3IUE)

{r61°L9) (F56'18) [€529rA39] (1v2'60) (9617950} I[QBAIRIIY SIUNOIIY JO UOREB[[POUED

000°SPL'S 00G°009'E moussarSy asea| rende)) woxy spasoLg
685°6¢ {ps1edpng-uon) sasea] eideDy

(sasn) saanos Fupoeuyy LYO

(p18°8£0°L) (161°L£0°) AT 1 TS6°0ST°E PFEOTHT 718°128°1 (62L°161°F) (6Tr60E°T) (F90° 18} ¥¥9°60€ sampuadxy (:9pun) 2a0

SaNuAAIY Jo (Aouarotga(]) ssaoxz

LT6'68E 551 PEECETHL C8TOLE LET 86¢°190°1¥1 Ly b8 6Z1 80£°9%L 6T £16'699°1Z1 VEGTOR01T 99%"0£8°66 TT8'8r8'16 samyIpuadxy [T
£9L°68 1487211 90641 TES'60T 600'697 98IETE P0G ELE [LE'ETy 168°0LY 688905 SaBIBID JAUYRO PUE 1821a1U]
9L9'9TT £VO'ELE EIS658T 00C'SET’T 0005801 000°0¥0°1 000°010°1 000°066 000°086 000°086 Tedioutzg

321G 193(]

£ETEST 8LL'ETT 919'09 $167EST 9F6'FTI 676'E5T L8091 5[00Yeg feleds

8L87T¥IE 180°5¥9 381°LE1 TLE9SS 814°886°1 HeL8o 919°€ZYY R66'12¢ SERYLT EELGZE Aepng jznden
- - W FCHTI LLETISLL 50911651 T6L°050°61 $68°509°L1 000T6L 5L L06'9LL'F1 OIS FLLTT sigauag paesopeury
1Z1TIE0T 1748781 8FYEE0'91 12919691 L85°05E°51 9T6'678 ¥1 098'190°€1 10£°1€9°11 985°658°6 TISE19'8 uonenodsiel], fidng
996099 8BLET1™ 129°70T°% TLLYIED €LL7169°9 TLRLPL9 TILT96S 619°180°9 TE9'E0R'S 9P ESH'S SOURLALIBHY PUE SLONLIIAQ) JuRld
86£°859°¢ OLL'POS'E AR 20v'869°C SPEERI'E 968El6'E £5E°6¥9°E 3L6°015°E 00E'B1E'E L¥S'ESLT SIVIAIRG IANELSTUIUDY [0CUOS
LLEILRE 0THOELE $80°686°T ¥SS°L9TT Z09°181°T L9E0SET SYT8EEC ¥TEOLY'T $8T'L6E'T 19L°%23%¢ SROIAIRE ALRISNIWPY PO
LBYLES I 0L9°196'FF 650'89€°6E 089610 9L CIFTE ILNPES P 1818767 066'898'97 9§8°L16'TE SOSTIET6L SAOIAIAG PAARLY IsU[ % SIS
LEE'86LST STLLEYST 919 1LZ7SI L1Z°€99'01 P19°728°01 0915668 S1Z°908'L 9LOILY'S uomny,

IS1507) PAINQUESIPU[) PuE saotalag weddng

£50°11 ZIF'SL eH5TIT 6LY°00E 0ZEEs1 000°081 000°T11 0980T suonerd/suRIBolg SIS A0
QLLTRIT 991°992°1 £06°6E6 LE8'5¥8 6618 LEBTES £88°89L L89°€S9 096'T9L LEEPIL WORCRASU] PRHQ
EF1°E66'S 9C8ErEY G60°668°C 6ZTLEFT 88E° 18T 965 TEET 160°L60'1 P99°I¥6 £00°165 9E9'T1S uoyonasy [erads 1RO
LLS'LEC0E 6SE°TEL'ST 9CLTEL'D LETFLY'S 1£8°01£'9 98¢'TTI'S 000°6¥1°8 BEB'659°9 P6L6S19 9TSYIL'S HoRoNNSU] uoREsnpy jeradg
[L9I8TFE 8ILsLE T8P'6I0'LT 196 126'9T 28L°960°CT SHF9$6°6T [EF 1L $66°600°5T 0LT' RO VT LE68EST uonoRTsu] SEMITY

UOOILOSUY

saan) puadxy

EILTSE 6P £61°916'651 LETPSTOFL 60§ T1TbPT 16£ 49T TE 0TI 896 1E1 £6LRLY'LIT £09°TLE 601 T0F6YE'66 99185126 SRUIADI [RID],
008'sL $62°91 $IAMOE 100"
CR6'CESFE [8L°0¥T6Y PEO'B08LY TP6T98'9Y SOY'8SH LY T60°THE'SY 958°01L0r TTEEYY'LE GTSEEPPE 120°T8Y°ZE SI0INOE AEIg
128°151°CT SSI168°81 L91°669°81 96¥°$80%T SEE'8S1TL 497 195° 11 OIFELE0L EPOLYTET TRT'TFTIT £L0°910°01 590G [ROPIT
8EHPET 601°6¥5 LYO'TSE SFEOLE 6T 61T LEL'BLO'R T6TH99 LES'TH9 PILHTY $L£'9T9 SINUSAY SNOSUR[[ISIA PAINSIIUN)
- 0£0°C 0799451 S[EHAY pue SI|RG SHOOQNA],
906 [ Eal A% Jras €70°'86 ELIWL 06L°16 £16°02 PE6'THI 97I'¢6 X3 araa safrey) uonmy,
LEOOFETL S SLO'SOLTL  $  LSTOPS'EL § O00L'SERTL § SPRULPSOL $ LEPTIB6'SE § TOT'IES'ES §  6SCTCS8ULS § IPL'SCIES § t9sTlIGSy § Anap el
SINUIARY
£10Z AT 116z 0107 600T 2002 1007 200 $00T POOT

(Rununcase fo s1spq [P0 pafipow)
{panpneus)
SAVIA TVISId NAL LSVT
SANNA TVINAWNAIAQD - SAINYTVE ANNA NT SEDNVHD
NOLLYDNAE A0 Q¥ 0R JOOMIIY'T
¥-r LIGIEEXT



00€°L1E
L86°659
LY0°TEE
9PE0ES
6LS6HY]
LEL'FLO'S
T6TF99
£TLLTY
8T6°ETF

SLETFS

[#joy

I LIGIHX3A

$

ISI°LET 0b9°LE
TPP'SET r50°TST
81Z°8C rTIsTe
S99 6EL'891
91¥'¢E L5R'¢8T
P16°LLY PO EEL
£OTI11 108°cT
6LE0R §$9°L8T
8LY'V8
TEC'RGE $
SNOINBFIISTIAL ey -H

1Ly
T6T9¢

L9'8Y

¥06°C

£SL9E
T1E€%¢E
8EP e

051°6T

[EUE
Ayroey

V6

¥L0°81 - 790°c6
118°69 616°S1 0p0°STI
€E9°LT
LE6YS
I8S0°TLI 000°056
+60°60T 0ST°12E $ 0008159 S
¥65°C1T
$  087°0¢1 $
spunjPy g0 STEIUIY/SeS $1288Y uominy,
jeoueansuf HooqIxa ], Jo apEg
(poytpneun)
SAVAA NAL LSV

ADUNOS A9 ANINIATE TVIOT HEHLO ANNL TVEINTD

NOLLYDNAH A0 qdVO0d GOOMTM VT

$

g

798°9¢
0£0°s
00¥°CZ
S08°TI
1LZ%01
097°8L1
£8€°6LT
1€2°97¢
020791

£v8 Tyl

PoWLIE]
Jsa1930]

$

€1t
Ti0T
110T
610T
600T
8002
L00T
9500T
S002

¥00Z

B¢ oung

papug
B3} [BIST]



<6
001§ 1ad a1e sayBI XE] ©
SAQRIEY JO WWEASGY AJUNOY) :20IMOg
0611 001°L88°T8Y'L 00Z'9Z1°6ZT' 6957965929 99L°E18T £06°0SL°ESTD L06FITILT 00T OSL'LLY O0LGFETTY 00F°8TLY 001'S8F'8r9y 009'TTL'SET £10T
FILI 006°T0S015°L 001°LLTBETT TS6'990°58E°9 75696821 000°DLTTLES DOV PEFLOS 009°I8EVES DOU'6E6°6¥9 00Z690 00T°LY6°L6S Y 009'81¥6LT [4{r4
0TIl 199°989°009°L O0T'LLE'RET'] Z8E'PTE05E" T66°968'71 00" LE9'LEL'e 00L'85TPEE 000'6££°805 00L°6T0PLY 001'690'F 005°8PS0IS Y 00F'98E'90E 1102
0911 Fh6 820 286'L 000°LOS'EFT'T TSO'TI8YEE9 1$9°¢81°21 00P'LTH'LEES DOL'8STHEE 000°6££°808 00L°STO LY 001°650°F 005 S 0TE" Y 00F°O8EH0E 010%
£Z8'0 ELO'CTP681°8 DOE"C95°E9T"1 9ER'CEETCLY L 9EFBLE'DL 005°6SE°LEB L GOO'RIT9%E 0O¥TELTOY 00T°CLOESL 001°€E6'y 009°05T°L69°S 00E'9PE ThE 600T
1280 8L0°C61°6KE'R 00L0£6710T] 00T°LITTOR'L Q0Z°ET9°6T 000 FES OPE'L 00£°€8THLE 00106209 00F°681°T9L 006'TE6'Y 00£'818°E£9°% 00 894891 800T
LERO SLTUTOPIS6 L 00S°LEC6STY PSYLISTSELL PO 66°s1 066TZ961L°L 001°90E°LLE 000°6¥0°C09 D0S™LBT'6TL 009711278 008 VEE'RRY'S 066°€16°915 L00T
9580 LOTPFLIOSS L DOb'861°9T1'1 BED'E8LIES L GELOLEST ODETIZ0TS L OO AT LYE 000°'BESE6S Q0¥ 69T TEL 00¥°8THY 005°F81°15€'S 009°ZE0F8E 900Z
626'1 60965 00F9 QOSOLY ESH S18°911°948° 9IT'EER'S 009'C8T'LI8'T 00T FLE YT 00L°79¢°667 00E°9P1°66T 00L°LLLE DOD'FE63LE] 00L'8RT'THI $00T
0S8T §  OLI'T6T'686'F $  00L'E80°8EY $ 9BEULYLO9LT $ 98FOIPOT S 006'0SE0SLT § GOTO0E YIS 009°E0E°T6T § 00E'SEE'B6T $ 00TERS'E  § DOT90EEL6'T § 005785001 § $00T
° uus.% xah un.:ﬂh? htuaohm u—nmw.m..—. mu_.w:_pb Mqng In[ep Hﬁunﬁd&d. —mgm:ﬁ:_ _mwuhu—qﬂs@ &u.& Ewm Mm_.u:u—u_woM ﬁdmd JUBIB A ,Om 055.
jooyag {pazienby Anmoyy) 1duxg-xe nonBR{BA 19N Passassy @10 popuy
1931(] [BT2Y poleuinsg Jeax
120, [B3sLy

(panpoeun)
SYVIA NAL LSYT
ALYAdOAd FIFVXVL A0 ANTVA TVALIY ANY AATVA FISSIASSY
NOLL¥ITE 40 @IV0d A00MTAV
9-r LIGIHXA



EXHIBIT J-7
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES
LAST TEN YEARS
(Unaudited)
(rate per $ 100 of assessed vafue)

Overlapping Rates
Total Direct Total Direct and
School Tax Overlapping Tax
Rate Fire District Municipality County Rate
Calendar

Year
2004 $ 1.750 $ 0.096 $ 0.800 $ 0.560 $ 3.206
2005 1.929 0.102 0.828 0.581 3.440
2006 0.806 0.041 0.411 0.252 1.510
2007 0.837 0.048 0.455 0311 1.651
2008 0.871 0.048 0.504 0316 1.739
2009 0.925 0.460 0.554 0319 2.258
2010 1.160 0.057 0.686 0.339 2.242
2011 [.120 0.050 0.686 0.420 2.276
2012 1.114 0.050 0.686 0.349 2.199
2013 1.190 0.044 0.783 0.452 2.469

Source: County Abstract of Ratables
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EXHIBIT J-8
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS,
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

(Unaudited)
2013 2004
Taxable % of Total Taxable % of Total
Assessed District Net Assessed District Net
Taxpayer Value Assessed Value Value Assessed Value
Harrogate, Inc. $ 29,000,000 0.46%
New Hampshire Avenue Investments LL.C 29,600,000 0.46%
1900 Route 70 Associates LLC 25,600,000 0.40%
Lakewood Plaza 9 Associated LP 24,385,000 0.39% Information Not Available
Leisure Park Venture Limited Partnership 23,432,000 0.37%
Lakewood Co-Generation LP 19,777,500 0.32%
Woodlake Village LLC 18,800,000 0.30%
Lighthouse Washington Square LLC 12,300,000 0.20%
BCR Pinewood Realty LL.C 12,125,000 0.19%
Verizon - NJ 11.813.768 0.19%
$ 98,248,268 1.57%

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Collected within the Fiscal Year
Year Taxes Levied of the Levy Collections in
Ended for the Fiscal Percentage Subsequent
June 30, Year Amount of Levy Years
2004 $ 48,911,864 $ 48,911,864 100.00% N/A
2005 53,155,741 53,155,741 100.00% N/A
2006 57,855,559 57,855,559 100.00% N/A
2007 63,532,102 63,532,102 100.00% N/A
2008 65,981,437 65,981,437 100.00% N/A
2009 70,847,848 70,847,848 100.00% N/A
2010 72,835,700 72,835,700 100.00% N/A
2011 73,546,157 73,546,157 100.00% N/A
2012 71,105,078 71,105,078 100.00% N/A
2013 72,246,057 72,246,057 100.00% N/A
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

EXHIBIT J-10

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Unaudited)
Governmental
Activities

Fiscal

Year General Business-
Ended Obligation Capital Leases / Type

June 30, Bonds Lease Purchase Activities Total District Population Per Capita
2004 $ 9,032,000 $ 388,932 9,420,932 66,443 $ 141.79
2005 8,052,000 191,953 8,243,953 68,552 120.26
2006 7,062,000 7,062,000 69,427 101.72
2007 6,052,000 2,886,671 8,938,671 69,876 127.92
2008 5,012,000 2,206,747 7,218,747 70,960 101.73
2009 2,792,000 1,499,721 4,291,721 71,359 60.14
2010 2,792,000 764,513 3,556,513 93,004 38.24
2011 1,697,000 1,697,000 93,283 18.19
2012 839,000 25,047 864,047 92,740 9.32
2013 629,000 5,763,117 6,392,117 92,740 * 68.93
* - Estimated

Source: District records
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL
(Unaadited)

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

YEARS

EXHIBIT J-11

Fiscal Percentage of

Year General Net General Actual Taxable

Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value of

June 30, Bonds Deductions Outstanding Property Per Capita

2004 $ 9,032,000 $ 9,032,000 0.33% $ 135.94
2005 8,052,000 8,052,000 0.28% 117.46
2006 7,062,000 7,062,000 0.09% 101.72
2007 6,052,000 6,052,000 0.08% 86.61
2008 5,012,000 5,012,000 0.06% 70.63
2009 3,927,000 3,927,000 0.05% 55.03
2010 2,792,000 2,792,000 0.04% 30.02
2011 1,697,000 1,697,000 0.03% 18.19
2012 839,000 839,000 0.01% 9.05
2013 629,000 629,000 0.01% 6.78

Source: District records
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LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVYERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2(:12

EXHIBIT J-12

(Unaudited)
Gross Debt Deductions Net Debt
Municipal Debt: (1)
Lakewood Township Public Schools $ 629,000 $ 629,000
Township of Lakewood 58,445,946 1,020,000 $ 57,425,946
$ 59,074,946 $ 1,649,000 57,425,946
Overlapping Debt Apportioned to the Municipality:
County of Ocean (A) 33,653,508
33,653,508
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 91,079,454

Source:
(1) Township's 2012 Annual Debt Statement

(A} The debt for this entity was apportioned to Lakewood Township Public Schools by dividing the municipality's 2012

equalized value by the total 2012 equalized value for Ocean County. (Information not available).
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Year

2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013

* . Estimate

Source: New Jersey State Department of Education

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{(Unaudited)
County Per
Capita Personal
Population Income
66,443 $ 33,567
68,552 34,497
69,427 36,773
69,876 39214
70,960 40,975
71,359 39,331
93,004 40,291
93,283 40,724
92,740 not available

92,740 *
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not available

EXHIBIT J-14

Unemployment
Rate

6.2%
4.4%
4.9%
4.6%
5.9%
8.9%
9.1%
7.5%
7.8%
not available



LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION

EXHIBIT 5135

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS,
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO
(Unaadited}
2013 2004
Pereentage of Total Percentage of Total
Municipal Municipal
Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment

INFORMATION NOT AVAILABLE
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EXHIBIT J-14

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT IMSTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
{Unaudited)

2004 2008 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2051 2012
Funetion/Program
Instruction
Regutar 353 335 323 288 262 243 250 257 a9
Special education il 115 119 140 137 136 136 138 iS4
Other Speciat Instruction 10 11 17 19 18 13 20 22 40
Other instruction 14 14 iz 13 13 12 12 12 12
C ity Services Prop: Operati 2 2 3 3 3 3 2 2 2
Support Services:
Student & instruction related services 215 231 237 248 240 230 214 217 189
Other Adninisirative Services n i7 17 17 28 27 27 31 35
Schonl administralive services 45 61 61 61 55 54 54 54 57
Plant operations and maintenance 1 1 H H 1 1 1 1 3
Pupil Transpartation 3 4 4 4 s 3 5 4 5
Special Schools 3 3 2 3 3 3 3 3 -
Total 700 754 96 797 765 37 724 741 788

Source: District Personnel Records
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EXHIBIT J-20

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATON

INSURANCE SCHEDULE
JUNE 36, 2013
(Unaudited)
Coverage Deductible
Property and Inland Marine
Building and Business Personal Property b 152,847,015 $ 10,000
Blanket Business Income and Extra Expense 5,000,000
Earthquake 5,000,000
Electronic Data Processing 2,500,000
Flood
Zone Cor X 5,000,000
Zone A, DorV 1,000,000
Zone B 2,000,000
Crime
Computer Fraud 50,000 1,000
Employee Theft ineluding Faithful Performance 500,000 5,000
Forgery/Alteration 50,000 1,000
Theft of Money and Securities 50,000 1,000
General Liability
Commercial Genersl Liability 1,000,000
Employee Benefit Liability 1,000,000
Abusive Act Liability 1,000,000
Automobile
Uninsured Motorist 1,000,000
Umbrella Liability 10,000,000
Boiler and Machinery 152,847,015 5,000
Public Official Bond
Thomas A. D'Ambola, Business Administrator/Board Secretary 2,000
Kenneth Jannarone, School District Treasurer 500,000

Source: District's records
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLRupr

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS

DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY J. VINCI, CPA, RMA, PSA ANDREW PARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA
JEFFREY C. BLISS, CPA, RMA, PSA DEBORAH K. LERCH, CPA, PSA
PAUL J. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA RALPH M, PICONE, CFA, RMA, PSA
DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA DEBRA GOLLE, CPA

JULIUS B. CONSONI, CPA, PSA CINDY JANACEK, CPA, RMA
) EDWARD N, KERE, CPA

LORIT. MANUKIAN, CPA, PSA

MARK SACO, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of'the Board of Trustees

Lakewood Board of Education

Lakewood, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States and audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State
of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lakewood Board of Education as of and for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2013 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Lakewood Board of
Education’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated December 5, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Lakewood Board of Education’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Lakewood Board of Education’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Lakewood Board of Education’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designied to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.

17-17 ROUTE 208 ® FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410 e TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100 @ FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
WWWLVHCPA.COM

110




EXHIBIT K-1

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs as item 2013-001 to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-002, 2013-003 and
2013-005 to be significant deficiencies.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Lakewood Board of Education’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination
of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-001 through 2013-004.

We also noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Lakewood Board of Education in a separate report
entitled, “Auditor’s Management Report on Administrative Findings — Financial, Compliance and Performance” dated
December 5,2013.

Lakewood Board of Education’s Responses to Findings

The Lakewood Board of Education’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Lakewood Board of Education’s responses were not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
responses.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Lakewood Board of Education’s internal control
or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Lakewood Board of Education’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this

communication is not suitable for any other purpose.
S <
SO Y

s
EERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS///ﬁJP
Certified Public Accountants

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
December 5, 2013
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS,LLP

EXHIBIT K-2
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS
DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY J. VINCI, CPA, RMA, PSA ANDREW PARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA
JEFFREY C. BLISS, CPA, RMA, PSA DEBORAH K. LERCH, CPA, PSA
PAUL J. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA RALPH M. PICONE, CPA, RMA, PSA
DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA DEBRA GOLLE, CPA

JULIUS B. CONSONI, CPA, PSA CINDY JANACEK, CPA, RMA
) EDWARD N. KERE, CPA

LORIT. MANUKIAN, CPA, PSA

MARK SACO, CPA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM;
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT
ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS REQUIRED BY
U.S. OMB CIRCULAR A-133 AND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE AS REQUIRED BY NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Trustees

Lakewood Board of Education

Lakewood, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Lakewood Board of Education’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey OMB
Circular 04-04 State Aid/ Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of
Lakewood Board of Education’s major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The
Lakewood Board of Education’s major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

The Lakewood Board of Education’s financial statements includes expenditures of federal awards under NCLB — Title |
and expenditures of state financial assistance under Nonpublic Auxiliary Services (Chapter 192) and Nonpublic
Handicapped Services (Chapter 193), as reflected on Exhibits K-3 and K-4. The audits of these programs were limited in
scope to those records made available for audit. Certain records, including selected invoices, were removed from the
District by Federal and State agencies. As such, these records were not available for audit.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
its federal and state programs.
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EXHIBIT K-2

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Lakewood Board of Education’s major federal
and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit
of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey; U.S. OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Iocal Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations and New Jersey
OMB Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Those standards
and Circulars require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Lakewood Board of
Education’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Lakewood Board of Education’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the Lakewood Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013,

Other Muatters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in
accordance with U.S. OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-006 through 2013-014. Our opinion on each
major federal and state program is not modified with respect to these matters.

The Lakewood Board of Education’s responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Lakewood Board of Education’s responses were not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
responses.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Lakewood Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the Lakewood Board of Education’s internal control over compliance with the types
of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with U.S.
OMB Circular A-133 and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Lakewood Board of Education’s internal control over compliance.
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EXHIBIT K-2

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A
material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were
not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance, as described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2013-006 and 2012-008 through 2013-010 that we
consider to be significant deficiencies.

The Lakewood Board of Education’s responses to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit
is/are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Lakewood Board of Education’s
responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the responses.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of U.S. OMB Circular A-133 and New
Jersey OMB Circular 04-04. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by U.S. OMB Circular A-133 and Schedule of
Expenditures of State Financial Assistance Required by New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Lakewood Board of Education as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of Education’s basic financial
statements. We issued our report thercon dated December 5, 2013, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by U.S.
OMB Circular A-133 and schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required by New Jersey OMB Circular 04-
04 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with anditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of
expenditures of state financial assistance are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.

H,@N«% %ﬂ—u&, ;i /A/O

ERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS/ALP

PSA Number CS00756

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
December 5, 2013
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EXHIBIT K -5
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAY AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2013

NOTE 1 GENERAL

The accompanying schedules present the activity of all federal and state financial assistance programs of the Lakewood
Board of Education. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's basic financial statements, All federal
financial assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial assistance passed
through other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance,

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules are prepared and presented using the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of
programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of
accounting are described in Notes 1{C) to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in these schedules is
presented in accordance with requirements of U.S. OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-
Profit Organizations” and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State
Grants, and State Aid”. Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules may differ from the amounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related
legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas
for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on a modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue
recognition of the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-
44.2.. For GAAP purposes, those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and
recording of certain state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying
schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, which may include the delayed state aid payments, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue
fund also recognizes the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2,

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is an increase of $611,199 for the general fund
and a decrease of $1,127,318 for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds.
Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as
presented as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 431,144  § 34,377,644 § 34,808,788
Special Revenue Fund 21,720,427 20,236,676 41,957,103
Debt Service Fund 21,665 21,665
Food Service Fund 3,489,296 43,255 3,532,551

Total Financial Assistance $ 25640867 § 54679240 § 80,320,107
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EXHIBIT K-5
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 4 RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules may not necessarily agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports due to timing differences between the District’s fiscal year and grant program years.

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION

Revenues and expenditures reported under the National School Lunch Program as non-cash assistance represent current year
value received and current vear distributions, respectively of the Federal Food Distribution Program. TPAT Social Secarity
contributions in the amount of $2,115,181 represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the employer’s share of social
security contributions for TPAF members for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 'The amount reported as TPAF Pension
System Contributions in the amount of $2,096,738 and TPAF Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions in the amount
of $2,370,882 represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013,

NOTE 6 ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATE SINGLE AUDIT

On-behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions are not subject to a State
single audit and, therefore, are excluded from major program determination. The Schedule of State Financial Assistance
provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance reported in the District’s basic financial statements and the amount
subject to State single audit and major program determination.
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EXHIBIT K-6

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statement Section
Type of auditor's report issued:
Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Were significant deficlencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Noncompliance material to the basic financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards Section

Internal Control over major programs:
1} Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Were significant Deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported

in accordance with Section .510(a) of Circular A-133?

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s)

34.010

34.027

84.173

10.553

10.555

10,555

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs;

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

120

Unmodified
X yes no
X yes none reported
X yes no
yes X no
X yes none reported
Modified
X yes no

Name of Federal Program

Title |

IDEA Part B, Basic

IDEA Preschool

School Breakfast Program

Nationat School Lunch Program

After School Snack Program

$ 798,652

yes X no




EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT'D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

State Awards Section

Auditee qualified as Tow-risk auditee? yes X no

Internal Control over major programs:

1}  Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no

2)  Were significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? X yes none reported

Type of auditor's report on compliance for major programs: Modified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with N.J. OMB Circular Letter 04-047 X yes no

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Numbex(s) Name of State Program
495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
465-034-5120-089 Special Education Aid
495-034-5120-084 Security Aid
495-034-5120-014 Transportation Aid
100-034-5120-473 Extraordinary Aid
495-034-5120-015 Reimbursed TPAF Social Security
495-034-5120-086 Preschool Education Aid
100-034-5120-067 WNonpublic Auxiliary Services (Ch. 192)
100-034-5120-066 Nonpublic Handicapped Services (Ch. 193)

Dollar threshold used to determine between type A and type B programs: $ 1,492,406
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to the

basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2013-001:
Our audit revealed that payments for textbook leases were budgeted and charged to the Debt Service Fund rather
than to the appropriate General Fund budget account. Additionally, a certified A-4F was not able to be provided for

audit.

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

Uniform Minimum Chart of Accounts for New Jersey Public Schools; Budget Guidelines
Condition:

The District appropriated and charged the payment of textbook leases to the Debt Service Fund. A certified form
A-4F was not able to be provided for audit.

Questioned Costs:

None,

Context:
The District appropriated $643,740 for two (2) textbook lease repayments during 2012/13 in the Debt Service
Fund. This amount was required to be budgeted and charged to the General Fund. The 2012/13 certified form
AA4F, certification of tax levy, was not able to be provided for audit.

Effect:
The District’s financial statements include a tax levy and related expenditures in the Debt Service Fund, both of
which should be reported in the General Fund. As the District’s budget was approved with these amounts
included in the Debt Service Fund, the auditor did not reclassify such charges.

Cause:

Unknown.

Recommendation:

Approval be obtained from the Executive County Superintendent allowing the lease payments to be charged to the
Debt Service Account, Furthermore, a certified A-4F be made available for audit.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that this matter will be forwarded to the Executive
County Superintendent.
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EXHIBIT K-6

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to the
basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2013-002:

Our audit revealed certain year-end outstanding purchase orders were misclassified between Reserved for
Encumbrances and Accounts Payable.

Criteria or specific requirement:

GAAP Technical Systems Manual

Condition:

Certain purchase orders for which goods were received or services rendered prior to June 30 were classified as
reserved for encumbrances rather than accounts payable. Additionally, certain purchase orders for which goods
were received or services were rendered subsequent to June 30 were classified as accounts payable rather than
reserved for encumbrances.

Questioned Costs:

None.

Context:

Special Revenue Fund accounts payable in the amount of $2,850,246 were misclassified as reserved for
encumbrances. Special Revenue Fund reserved for encumbrances in the amount of $708,806 were misclassified
as accounts payable.

Effect:

Accounts Payable and Reserved for Encumbrances were not accurately reported in the District’s year-end
financial records. Audit adjustments were made to ensure accurate reporting in this CAFR.

Cause:
Unknown.
Recommendation:

Internal controls be reviewed and enhanced to ensure open purchase orders are reviewed for validity and properly
classified as accounts payable or encumbrances at year end.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to the
basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing

Standards.

Finding 2013-003:

Our audit revealed that certain transportation services provided to the District were not encumbered in the District’s
records.

Criteria or specific requirement;

GAAP Technical Systems Manual.
Condition:

Invoices for transportation services were submitted to the District for which no prior purchase order was issued
and encumbered.

Questioned Costs:

None,
Context:

Invoices in the amount of $416,694 were submitted to the District after year end for transportation services.
These amounts were not encumbered on the year end financial records of the District.

Effect;

District expenditures and year end liabilities were understated, resulting in an overstatement of fund balance.
Audit adjustments were made to ensure accurate reporting in the CAFR.

Cause;
Unknown.

Recommendation:

Internal controls be enhanced to ensure all transportation contracts are properly encumbered at the time of award.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to the
basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing

Standards.

Finding 2013-004:

Our audit indicated that the District did not always provide notification to the Office of the State Comptroller of
contracts awarded for amounts exceeding $2 million in accordance with NJSA 52:15C-10.

Criteria or specific requirement:

NISA 52:15C-10.
Condition:

Several contracts were noted in which the award amount exceeded $2 million for which notification to the Office
of the State Comptroller was not made.

Questioned Costs:

None.

Context:
Notification was not made to the Office of State Comptroller as required for contracts exceeding $2 million
awarded to Catapult Learning, LLC, ABCD Construction Corp, SCHI, Durham School, Tree of Knowledge,
Jay’s Busing, Student Transportation of America, and ARAMARK.

Effect:

The District was not in compliance with state statutes regarding the Office of the State Comptroller.
Cause:

Adequate procedures were not in place to notify the Office of State Comptroller of contracts awarded for
amounts in excess of $2 million.

Recommendation:

Notification be provided to the Office of the State Comptroller of contracts awarded by the District which exceed
$2 million in accordance with NJSA 52:15C-10.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated procedures have been developed and will be
implemented to ensure timely notification is made for required contract awards.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Part 2 - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance related to the

basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 5.18 of Government Auditing
Standards.

Finding 2013-005:

Our audit revealed that the District’s capital asset appraisal and depreciation report was not updated to reflect
2012-13 acquisitions, dispositions and depreciation.

Criteria or specific requirement:

Our audit revealed that the District’s capital asset appraisal and depreciation report was not updated to reflect
2012-13 acquisitions, dispositions and depreciation.

Condition:
The District did not maintain an updated asset appraisal and repost as of June 30, 2013,

Questioned Costs:

Unknown.

Context:
The District’s total capital assets and accumulated depreciation, as reported in the CAFR, are $42,813,585 and
$27,778,213, respectively. Current year additions, as reflected in the District’s budgetary reporting system, were
$3,142,878.

Effect:

The District capital asset records may not agree with actual values of District owned assets.
Cause:

Unknown.

Recommendation:

The District’s capital asset appraisal report be updated on an annual basis.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New
Jersey OMRB’s Circular 04-04,

CURRENT YEAR FEDERAL AWARDS

Finding 2013-006:

Our audit revealed that reimbursement requests for District expenditures of federal funds were not filed in a timely
manner.

Federal Program Information:

84.010 NCLB Title 1
84.027/84.173 IDEA Basic/IDEA Preschool

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

OMB A-133, Grant Compliance Supplement - Cash Management and Reporting Requirements
Condition:

The District incurred expenditures during 2012/13 utilizing federal grant funding without requesting
reimbursement of such expenditures.

Questioned Costs:

None.
Context:

The District expended $21,036,258 of federal grant funds as of June 30, 2013 without requesting reimbursement
of such funds.

Cause:
Unknown.
Effect:

The District’s year end cash balance is in a deficit position, as other available cash was not sufficient to support
these disbursements,

Recommendation:

The District request reimbursement of funds for Federal grant program expenditures in a timely manner.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

CURRENT YEAR FEDERAEL AWARDS

Finding 2013-007:

Our audit revealed that certain records, including invoices, to support selected NCLB Title [ expenditures were
removed from the District by Federal and State agencies. As such, they were not available for audit.

Federal Program Information:
NCLB -Title I 84.010

Criteria or Specific Requirement;

OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement.
Condition:

Documentation to support certain Title I expenditures were removed from the District by federal and/or state
agents and therefore were not able to be provided for audit.

Questioned Costs:

None.
Context:
Documentation to support seven (7) expenditures totaling $2,899,625 was not available for audit:
Catapult — Four (4) expenditures totaling $2,479,061.
Tree of Knowledge — Three (3) expenditures totaling $420,564
Cause:
Documentation was removed from the District and was not available.
Effect:
The audit of these programs were limited in scope.
Recommendation:

No recommendation is warranted as the scope limitation was beyond the control of the District.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2013-008:

Our audit revealed certain expenditures were reclassified from the General Fund to the Special Revenue Fund and
charged to the Chapter 192/193 Non Public Grant Program without sufficient detail to support such reclassification.

State program Information:

100-034-5120-067 Chapter 192 — Auxiliary Services

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

State of New Jersey Grant Compliance Supplement — Reporting Requirement

Condition:
The District reclassified legal expenditures from the General Fund to the Special Revenue Fund, and charged such
expenditures to the Compensatory Education portion of the Chapter 192 grant program. Detail to support such
reclassifications were unable to be provided for audit,

Questioned Costs:

None.
Context:

The District reclassified $223,157 of legal expenditures from the General Fund Budget to the Chapter 192 grant
program. Detail to support such reclassifications were not provided for audit.

Cause:
Unknown,
Effect:
Grant expenditures were reported without sufficient supporting detail.

Recoemmendation:

Allocation of legal expenses charged to the Chapter 192/193 Non Public Grant Program be adequately supported
with sufficient detail.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including

questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2013-909:

Our audit revealed that the monthly reports of the Treasurer of School Monies and Board Secretary, along with
related certifications, were not approved in the minutes on a timely basis.

State progsram Information:

495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
495-034-5120-089 Special Education Aid
495-034-5120-084 Security Aid

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

State of New Jersey Grant Compliance Supplement — State Aid Public
Condition:
The monthly reports of the Treasurer and Board Secretary were not approved on a timely basis throughout the year.

Questioned Costs:

None.
Contexi:

As of June 30, 2013, the monthly reports for January 2013 through June 2013 have not been submitted to the Board
for approval.

Cause:
Unknown.
Effect:
The District in not in compliance with State Aid Grant program requirements.

Recommendation:

The monthly reports of the Treasurer of School Monies and Board Secretary, along with required certifications, be
approved on a timely basis.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2013-010:
Our audit revealed that certain budgetary line items were overexpended and budget appropriation transfers were not
always approved in a timely manner. Additionally, the required monthly 10% transfer was not prepared and
submitted to the Executive County Superintendent for approval.

State program Information:

495-034-5120-078 Equalization Aid
495-034-5120-089 Special Education Aid
495-034-5120-084 Security Aid

Criteria or Specific Reguairement:

State of New Jersey Grant Compliance Supplement — State Aid Public

Condition:
Appropriation transfers were not always approved in a timely manner, resulting in an overexpenditure. Additionally,
the District’s total budget was overexpended by approximately $46,000 prior to further necessary audit

adjustments.The monthly 10% transfer report was not prepared and submitted to the Executive County
Superintendent.

Questioned Costs:
Unknown,

Context:
The District’s budgetary line item for Tuition to Private Schools for the Disabled, within the State, was
overexpended by $603,549. The District’s total budget, after necessary audit adjustments, was overexpended by
$457,672. The monthly 10% transfer reports for January 2013 through June 2013 were not prepared or submitted to
the County for approval,

Cause:

Unkown.
Effect:

The District in not in compliance with State Aid Grant program requirements.

Recommendation:

Budget appropriation transfers be submitted to the Board for approval on a timely basis to prevent line item
overexpenditures and the monthly 10% transfer report be prepared and submitted to the County for approval.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the andit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2013-011:

Our audit revealed that claims for reimbursements from the State of New Jersey for TPAF FICA amounts were not
always submitted in a timely manner.

State program Information:

495-034-5120-015 Reimbursed TPAF Social Security

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

State Grant Compliance Supplement
Condition:
Requests for reimbursements of TPAF FICA were not made in a timely manner,

Questioned Costs:

None,
Context:

TPAF FICA reimbursements for the payroll periods of April 5, 2013 through June 26,2013 were not requested on a
timely basis. As of June 30, 2013, $725,940 remains uncollected.

Cause:
Unknown.
Effect:
The District is not receiving reimbursements of TPAF FICA amounts paid on a timely basis, resulting in the

utilization of other available cash.

Recommendation:

Claims for State reimbursements of TPAF FICA be submitted on a timely basis.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,
CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2013-012:
Our audit of the District’s Application for State School Aid revealed that amounts reported were not always in

agreement with supporting workpapers and documentation for the respective categories. Additionally, class registers
to support student enroliment could not be provided for audit.

State program Information:

Equalization Aid 495-034-5120-078
Special Education Aid 495-034-5120-089
Security Aid 495-034-5120-084

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

State of New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement.

Condition:
Student counts claimed on the ASSA as On-Roll, Special Education, Private School for the Disabled and Low

Income did not always agree with student counts reflected on supporting workpapers and applicable documentation.
Additionally, class registers were not able to be provided to support student enrollment.

Ouestioned Costs:

Unknown.

Context:
The following variances were noted during our audit of the ASSA:
On-Roll
e The District reported 5,388 students on roll. The supporting workpapers show 5,367.
o  Class registers were not provided. Auditor could not verify the selected sample of 2,562.
Private Schools for the Disabled

e The District reported 199 students as attending Private Schools for the Disabled. The supporting
workpapers reflected 162,

o Individualized Education Programs (IEP’s) for 20 of the 113 students selected were not provided
for audit.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2013

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,
CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2013-012 (Continued):

Context (Continued):

Low Income

e The District reported 5028 students as eligible for free lunch. The supporting workpapers reflect
5,008.

e The District reported 311 students as eligible for reduced lunch. The supporting workpapers reflect
322.

Special Education

o Ofthe 68 students selected for audit, 43IEP’s were not able to be provided for audit.

LEP
¢ The District reported 640 students as LEP, low income. The supporting workpapers reflects a total
of 611.
e The District reported 24 students as LEP, not low income. The supporting workpapers reflect a
total of 52.
s The supporting workpapers included only a total of LEP students rather than a detail list of
students.
Cause:
Unknown.
Effect:

Student counts reported on the ASSA did not accurately reflect actual student counts as reflected in supporting
workpapers and documentation.

Recommendation:

Internal controls be enhanced to ensure that documentation is retained, updated and in agreement with students
reported on the Application for State School Aid.

Management’s Response:
Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 3 ~ Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,
CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2013-013:

Our audit revealed that B6T forms were not always able to be located for students reported in their respective
schools.

State program Information:

Transportation Aid 495-034-5120-014

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

State of New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement.
Condition:
See Finding.

Questioned Costs:

None.
Context:
The District reported 12,191 students transperted to non-public schools. The audit included a test sample of 263, of
which 127 B6T forms were not able to be located in the students’ respective school.
Cause:
Unknown.
Effect:
The number of students claimed for transportation to non-public schools could not be verified.

Recommendation:

In all instances, B6T forms be filed and categorized by school for students transported to non public schools as
reported on the DRTRS.

Management’s Response:

Management has reviewed this finding and has indicated that corrective action will be taken.
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EXHIBIT K-6
LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance, including
questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133and New

Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.
CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

Finding 2013-014:

Our audit revealed that certain records, including invoices, to support selected Chapter 192/193 expenditures were
removed from the District by Federal and State agencies. As such, they were not available for audit,

Federal Program Information:

Nonpublic Auxiliary Services (Chapter 192) 100-034-5120-067
Nonpublic Handicapped Services (Chapter 193) 100-034-5120-066

Criteria or Specific Requirement:

State Aid Grant Compliance Supplement
Condition:

Documentation to support certain Chapter 192/193 expenditures were removed from the District by federal
and/or state agents and therefore were not able to be provided for audit.

Questioned Costs:

None.
Context:
Documentation to support fifteen (15) expenditures totaling $7,344,428 was not available for audit:
Catapult — Four (6) expenditures totaling $6,708,193.
Tree of Knowledge — Three (6) expenditures totaling $414,862
Psych-Ed Services — Three (3) expenditures totaling $221,373
Cause:
Documentation was removed from the District and was not available.
Effect:
The audit of these programs were limited in scope.

Recommendation:

No recommendation is warranted as the scope limitation was beyond the control of the District,
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EXHIBIT K-7

LAKEWOQOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB
Circular A-133 (Section .315{a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,

STATIS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2012-1
Our audit revealed certain year-end outstanding purchase orders were misclassified as Reserved for
Encumbrances rather than as Accounts Payable. Additionally, certain purchase order balances were determined
to be invalid.

Current Status

See Finding 2013-002,

Finding 2012-2

Our audit indicated that the District did not always provide notification to the Office of the State Comptroller of
contracts awarded for amounts exceeding $2 million in accordance with NJSA 52:15C-10.

Current Status
See Finding 2013-004,

Finding 2012-3

Our audit revealed that numerous transportation contracts were awarded to various vendors which, individually,
were less than the transportation bid threshold, however when aggregated, significantly exceeded the bid
threshold.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.
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EXHIBIT K-7

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, U.S, OMB
Circular A-133 (Section .315(a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2012-4
Our audit of the District’s major Federal grant programs revealed the following:

a) The invoices submitted by Catapult for Title I non-public services did not provide the number of
students serviced nor were the hourly rates charged approved in the contract.

b) The salaries for individuals charged for the various Federal grant programs were not approved by the
Board as being grant funded charges.
Current Status

Corrective action has been taken,

Finding 2012-5

Our audit of the District’s Child Nutrition Program revealed that certain applications for free and reduced priced
meals were not able to be provided for audit.
Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.

Finding 2012-6

Our audit of the District’s Nonpublic Auxiliary (Chapter 192) and Nonpublic Handicapped (Chapter 193) Services

revealed the following:

a) Chapter 193 — Examination and Classification: The invoice submitted by Catapult Learning, LLC did not
provide the number of students serviced, thereby we were unable to determine if the charge for such service
was proper.

b) Chapter 192/193 — Compensatory Education, ESL, Corrective Speech, Supplementary Instruction:
i.  The invoices submitted by Catapult Learning, LLC did not provide sufficient support as to the number
of students serviced.
ii.  In several instances, either the purchase order or the supporting invoice from Catapult was not made

available for audit.

¢) Chapter 192 — Home Instruction: The “Application for Individual Pupil Services” form 407-1 was not
provided for audit.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.
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EXHIBIT K-7

LAKEWOOD BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements and federal and state
awards that are required to be reported in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of Government Auditing Standards, .S, OMB
Circular A-133 (Section .315{a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04,

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2012-7

Certain intensive services claimed in the Application for Extraordinary State Aid were not included in the respective
student’s approved Individual Education Program (IEP).

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.

Finding 2012-8

Our audit of the District’s Application for State School Aid revealed that amounts reported were not always in
agreement with supporting workpapers.

Cuarrent Status

See Finding 2013-012.

Finding 2012-9
Our audit revealed that B6T forms were not always available for students transported to non-public schools.

Current Status

See Finding 2013-013.

Finding 2012-10

Our audit revealed numerous transportation contracts were awarded to various vendors which, individually were less
than the transportation bid threshold, however, when aggregated, significantly exceeded the bid threshold.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.
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